’ DOCUMENT #202400084
BOARD OF UNION COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 02/5/24 07:50:26 AM

REGULAR MEETING T oof 1
AGENDA BY Devian Fields  ____.
February 8, 2024
9:00 a.m.
1. Call to order
2. Pledge of Allegiance
3. Approval of agenda and minutes
4. Hospital Report
5. Discussion/Possible Action Items
i.  Resolution 2024-21 Road Policy
ii.  Resolution 2024-31 NMDOT Capital Outlay
iili.  Resolution 2024-32 2024 Road Audit
iv.  Resolution 2024-33 BAR Corrections
v.  Legislative Session Updates and Discussion
.vi.  MET Tower Applications
vii.  Approval of Bills
viii.  Inventory Items Disposition - Road Department International Water Truck
ix.  Healthcare Assistance - Approval of Claims
x.  County Travel Requests
xi.  ARPA Funding
xii.  Budget Hearing

10:00 a.m. Citizen’s Forum

LN

Executive Session:

County Manager Report

Road Superintendent

Emergency Service Coordinator Report
Elected Officials Reports

Pursuant to NMSA 1978, Section 10-15-1(H) 2 Limited Personnel Matters

1. Road Dept

Adjourn

As of 2/5/2024

Next Meeting March 5, 2024 @ 9:00



BOARD OF UNION COUNTY COMMISSION
REGULAR MEETING

January 11, 2024
BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:
Chairman Clayton F. Kiesling Commissioner W. Carr Vincent Commissioner Lloyd ‘Red’ Miller
OTHERS PRESENT:
Clerk Brenda Green Manager Brandy Thompson Treasurer Shea Arnett
Assessor Hollie Sandoval Sheriff Curtis Skaggs HR Cheryl Garcia

Road Superintendent Gary Wright  Emergency Manager Kris Lawrence Road Admin Rachel Farnum

GUESTS:

Tammie Stump — CEO, Union County General Hospital

Melissa Prante — CFO, Union County General Hospital

Cliff and Jodie Skiles Gary Alsup Kevin Kenney
Paige Tamplin ' '

At 9:01 a.m., Chairman Kiesling called the meeting to order in the Commission Chambers located in the Union
County Administration Building. The pledge of allegiance was recited.

Commissioner Vincent moved to approve the agenda with a change of date to reflect postponement due to
the blizzard, and the regular meeting minutes of December 12, 2023. Commissioner Miller seconded. There
was no further discussion. Vote: ALL AYE. The agenda date was changed, and minutes were signed.

HOSPITAL REPORT

Tammie Stump, CEO, reported on statistics for December. Before the meeting, the “County Commissioner
Monthly Hospital Report, Union County General Hospital, Tammie Stump, CEO, January 11, 2024”, was
distributed to the board. Items covered included the following (but not limited to the following): Provider
Recruitment Update; Financial Assistance/Compliance Update; Business/Financial Update; Compliance;
Radiology; Plant Services; Therapy Services; Pharmacy; Laboratory; Union County/Des Moines Health
Centers; IT; HVAC/Vestibule/Cryogenic Tank 3000 gallon/Grade Survey; Legislative Update.

Melissa Prante, CFO, reported on financials for November. Before the meeting, the “Clayton Health Systems,
Inc. Union County General Consolidated Executive Financial Summary, 5t month FYE 2024”, and, the “Clayton
Health Systems December 27, 2023 MOR Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Period ending
November 30, 2023”, was distributed to the board. Items covered included the following (but not limited to
the following): Key Statistics; Statement of Revenue and Expenses — YTD; Balance Sheet.



Amanda Boggs, CNO, was unable to attend the meeting. Tammie Stump, CEO reported in her place. Items

covered included the following (but not limited to the following): Nursing; Swing Bed; Social Work Consults;
Trauma.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION ITEMS

ROAD VIEWER REPORT- CONSIDERATION, DISCUSSION, AND POSSIBLE ACTION SKILES ROAD
CLOSURE APPLICATION-EL VALLE ESCONDIDO RD, SAYRE ROAD, POTTER ROAD, QUIMBLY
ROAD, BLACK MESA ROAD, GOODSON ROAD.

Road viewer reports were reviewed and discussed by the board. Current and future usage of several of the
proposed roads were discussed.

Commissioner Vincent moved to approve closure of El Valle Escondido Road as requested in the application
for closure, with the stipulation that the land owner and the county road department work together on
placement of an adequate turn around. Commissioner Miller seconded. There was no further discussion.
VOTE: ALL AYE. Motion carried.

Commissioner Vincent moved to approve closure of Sayre Road as requested in the application for closure.
Commissioner Miller seconded. There was no further discussion. VOTE: ALL AYE. Motion carried.

Commissioner Vincent moved to approve closure of Potter Road as requested in the application for closure.
Commissioner Miller seconded. There was no further discussion. VOTE: ALL AYE. Motion carried.

Commissioner Vincent moved to approve closure of Quimbly Road as requested in the application for closure.
Commissioner Miller seconded. There was no further discussion. VOTE: ALL AYE. Motion carried.

Commissioner Vincent moved to approve closure of Black Mesa Road as requested in the application for
closure. Commissioner Miller seconded. There was no further discussion. VOTE: ALL AYE. Motion carried.

Commissioner Vincent moved to approve closure of Goodson Road as requested in the application for closure.
Commissioner Miller seconded. There was no further discussion. VOTE: ALL AYE. Motion carried.

RESOLUTION 2024-21 ROAD POLICY
Commissioner Miller moved to table this item until the February meeting. Commissioner Vincent seconded.
There was no further discussion. VOTE: ALL AYE. Motion carried.

CITIZEN’S FORUM

No one was present for Citizen’s Forum



RESOLUTION 2024-22 OPEN MEETINGS ACT

A proposed resolution setting the open meetings policy for Union County.

Commissioner Vincent moved to approve Resolution 2024-22, Open Meetings Act Policy for Union County.
Commissioner Miller seconded. There was no further discussion. VOTE: ALL AYE. Resolution signed.

2024 MEETING SCHEDULE

After some discussion, dates for 2024 commission meetings were set. Mgr. Thompson will advertise the
schedule.

RESOLUTION 2024-23 BOARD OF FINANCE

A proposed resolution designating the officers or successors who are authorized to order deposit or
withdrawal of monies in the local short-term investment fund on behalf of Union County.

Commissioner Vincent moved to approve Resolution 2024-23, Board of Finance. Commissioner Miller
seconded. There was no further discussion. VOTE: ALL AYE. Resolution signhed.

RESOLUTION 2024-24 INVESTMENT POLICY

A proposed resolution establishing the Union County investment policy.

Commissioner Vincent moved to approve Resolutionr 2024-24, Establishing the Union County Investment
Policy. Commissioner Miller seconded. There was no further discussion. VOTE: ALL AYE. Resolution signed.

RESOLUTION 2024-25 CHECKING ACCOUNTS
A proposed resolution designating the county checking account depository.

Commissioner Vincent moved to approve Resolution 2024-25, Designating the County Checking Account
Depository. Commissioner Miller seconded. There was no further discussion. VOTE: ALL AYE. Resolution
signed.

RESOLUTION 2024-26 INTEREST BEARING DEPOSITS

A proposed resolution listing qualified depositories and rules regarding the distribution of county interest
bearing deposits.

Commissioner Vincent moved to approve Resolution 2024-26, Interest Bearing Deposits. Commissioner Miller
seconded. There was no further discussion. VOTE: ALL AYE. Resolution signed.

RESOLUTION 2024-27 SIGNATURE AUTHORITY COUNTY MANAGER

A proposed resolution delegating authority to the county manager to enter into certain contracts and
settlement agreements.



Commissioner Vincent moved to approve Resolution 2024-27, Signature Authority County Manager.
Commissioner Miller seconded. There was no further discussion. VOTE: ALL AYE. Resolution signed.

RESOLUTION 2024-28 FY 25 DWI GRANT PARTICIPATION

A proposed resolution authorizing the county to submit an application to participate in the local DWI grant
and distribution program.

Commissioner Vincent moved to approve Resolution 2024-28, DWI Grant Participation. Commissioner Miller
seconded. There was no further discussion. VOTE: ALL AYE. Resolution signed.

RESOLUTION 2024-29 BAR SPECIAL REVENUE
A proposed resolution authorizing special revenue fund (600) (DFA #29900) budget increase.

Commissioner Vincent moved to approve Resolution 2024-29, BAR Special Revenue Budget Increase.
Commissioner Miller seconded. There was no further discussion. VOTE: ALL AYE. Resolution signed.

RESOLUTION 2024-30 BAR LEPF JPA GRENVILLE
A proposed resolution authorizing Law Enforcement Protection Fund (605) (DFA #21100) budget increase.

Commissioner Vincent moved to approve Resolution 2024-30, BAR LEPF JPA Grenville. Commissioner Miller
seconded. There was no further discussion. VOTE: ALL AYE. Resolution signed.

At 10:39 a.m., the meeting recessed for a short break.
At 10:51 a.m., the meeting resumed.

At 10:52 a.m., Commissioner Vincent moved to go into ExeCutive Session Pursuant to NMSA 1978, Section 10-
15-1 (H) 2 Limited Personnel Matters. Commissioner Miller seconded. There was no further discussion. VOTE:
Commissioner Vincent — YES, Chairman Kiesling — Yes, Commissioner Miller — YES. Motion carried.

At 11:17 a.m., Commissioner Vincent moved to come out of Executive Session, and affirmed that matters
discussed in the closed session were limited to only to those specified in the motion for closure. No action was
taken during the closed session. Commissioner Miller seconded. There was no further discussion. VOTE:
Commissioner Vincent — YES, Chairman Kiesling — YES, Commissioner Miller — YES. Motion carried.

AUTHORITY TO COUNTY MANAGER TO EXECUTE PURCHASE OF REAL PROPERTY
Commissioner Vincent moved to approve authorizing the County Manager to execute closing documents for
the purchase of real property for Union County. Commissioner Miller seconded. There was no further
discussion. VOTE: ALL AYE. Motion carried.

MET TOWER APPLICATIONS

No applications were presented for approval.



APPROVAL OF BILLS

Bills in the amount of $348,835.79 were presented for review and approval.

Commissioner Vincent moved to approve bills in the amount of $348,835.79, and authorized the county
manager to pay any additional bills for the month as presented. Commissioner Miller seconded. There was no
further discussion. VOTE: ALL AYE. Motion carried.

INVENTORY ITEMS DISPOSITION — ROAD DEPARTMENT INTERNATIONAL WATER TRUCK

No items were presented for disposition.

HEALTHCARE ASSISTANCE — APPROVAL OF CLAIMS
No claims were presented for approval.

COUNTY TRAVEL REQUESTS

Multiple county elected officials and staff will attend the Winter Conference in Santa Fe, and also attend the
Union County hosted Legislative Luncheon in Santa Fe. Probate Judge Loera and Clerk Green will attend
Probate Conference in Albuquerque. All travel approved. ‘

ARPA FUNDING

A continuing discussion on usage of ARPA funding was had. No action items were proposed. This will be a
continuing item on future agendas.

STATEGIC PLANNING-EDUCATION AND PUBLIC EMPOWERMENT IN GOVERNMENT

Mgr. Thompson visited with elected officials and department heads gathering ideas on community education
and outreach. Discussed was possibly updating the county website, and visiting the schools. This will be a
continuing agenda item. ‘

COUNTY MANAGER REPORT

Mgr. Thompson reported on the following (but not limited to the following): Increase in insurance rates;
Request from the Health Council to present to the Board; Update on funding for judicial complex renovations;
Update on capital outlay funding requests. ‘

ELECTED OFFICIALS REPORTS

Sheriff Skaggs reported that scheduling of deputies will be adjusted to cover the increase in court cases at the
courthouse, and he is advertising for a deputy position.

Assessor Sandoval reported that GIS Mapper Brayden Walker completed his first Assessor certification, and
will be talking his second course next month.

Treasurer Arnett reported that all properties offered at the recent tax sale were sold.

Clerk Green reported she will be in Santa Fe for most of the Legislative session supporting the Clerk’s bill, and
the election trailer has been relocated to the old Rabbit Ears Fire Station.



Commissioner Vincent shared his frustration with the number of bills that have been pre-filed for the
legislative session that are not germane.
Commissioner Kiesling reported that Economic Development will have their website up and running soon.

ADJOURN: At 12:19 p.m., Commissioner Vincent moved to adjourn after lunch. Commissioner Miller
seconded. There was no further discussion. Vote: ALL AYE. Motion carried.

Meeting Announcements: The next regular meeting will be held on Thursday, February 8, 2024 at 9:00 a.m.
The next Joint Communication meeting will be held on Tuesday, March 5, 2024 at 10:00 a.m.

Board of Union County Commissioners
ATTEST Union County, New Mexico

SEAL

Clayton F. Kiesling - Chairman

Brenda L. Green — County Clerk W. Carr Vincent - Vice Chairman

Lloyd ‘Red’ Miller - Member



REQUEST FROM UCGH MILL LEVY/GRT 1/24/2024

BY: Mellssa Prante

Date PAID TO: AMOUNT
7/14/2023 EFTPS | 51,851.88
7/28/2023 EFTPS 53,781.79 |

| 8/11/2023 |EFTPS 52,819.78 |
8/25/2023 [EFTPS 54,707.52 |

 9/8/2023 EFTPS 53,883.05

| er22/2023 EFTPS 55,236.73

. .| 10/6/2023 |EFTPS 51,883.86

- 10/20/2023 EFTPS 52,400.10

11/3/2023 EFTPS 58,210.04

| 111712023 EFTPS 50,808.39

12/1/2023  |EFTPS 47,372.84

i 12/5/2023 EFTPS 27,515.12
|

l
| - |
TOTAL '$  610,470.10

|- 24-Zp 24

COUNTY HOSPITAL BOARD APPROVA DATE

WE WILL ASK FOR THE FULL 806,840.91



CLAYTON HEALTH SYSTEMS
JANUARY 24, 2024 MOR
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Period Ending December 31, 2023

INCOME STATEMENT:

Nk

Gross patient revenue for December is $1.68M; $77k > budget; $30k < PY.
Total net patient revenue for the month after CA was $1.06M.

Total other revenue for the month is $223k.

County tax subsidy revenue is estimated at $84k.

Total MTD net operating revenue is $1.4M; $167k > budget; $23k > PY.
Operating expenses for the month are $1.3M; $37k > budget; $61k > PY.
Operating gain of $15k and EBIDA gain of $75k.

YTD Budget to Actual Variances is as follows:

Gross Patient Revenue is over budget by $602k.

Total Net Operating Revenues are over our YTD budget by $861k.

Total Operating Expenses are under YTD budget by $343k.

Salary/Benefits are under budget YTD by $79k.

Professional fees/Purchased Services are under budget by $1k.

Pharmacy, Medical, Other Supplies are over budget by $44k.

Other operating expenses (postage, subscriptions, dues, licenses, taxes,
maintenance, lease, utilities, travel, and education) are under budget by $251k.
Includes physician recruiting, audit invoices and 340B management fees.
Depreciation and Interest are under budget by $56k.

BALANCE SHEET:

10.
11.
12.
13.
14.
15.

UCGH had cash and cash equivalents of $ -141k.
December had CD balances total $935k.

AR Mill Levy and GRT balance $470k.

Net Patient AR is $1.95M.

AP Manual accruals is $64k.

CR for 2022 has an estimated receivable of $29k.
CR for 2023 has an estimated receivable of $109k.
December Days Cash on Hand is -4 days.



Clayton Health Systems, Inc

Union County General Consolidated

Executive Financial Summary

6th Month FYE 2024

Unaudited

12/31/23 12/31/23 YTD YTp Yro
ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE
Total Admissions 14 12 83 77 6
Total Patient Days 37 58 450 358 92
Average Length of Stay Total 2.64 4.83 5.42 4.65 0.77
Total Emergency Room Visits 122 153 806 915 (109)
Outpatient Visits (NOT CLINIC) 383 515 2,821 3,092 (271)
Total Surgeries 7 6 33 38 (5)
Total Podiatry Surgeries 0 0 11 0 11
Total Gl Procedures 5 5 25 30 (5)
12/31/23 12/31/23 YTp YTp
REPORTED IN THOUSANDS ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE
Revenue:
Gross Patient Revenues $1,682 $1,605 $10,230 $9,628 602
Deductions from Revenue {626) (682) (3,838) (4,097) 259
Net Patient Revenues 1,056 923 6,392 5,531 861
Other Revenue 307 273 1,507 1,641 (134)
Total Net Revenues 1,363 1,196 7,899 7,172 727
Expenses:
Salaries & Benefits 636 668 3,925 4,004 (79)
Professional Fees 111 48 384 287 7
Purchased Services 166 121 629 727 (98)
Supply Expenses 106 108 692 648 44
Other Operating Expenses 269 294 1,510 1,761 (251)
Depreciation & Interest Expense 60 72 375 431 (56)
Total Expenses 1,348 1,311 7,515 7,858 (343)
OPERATING MARGIN 15 (115) 384 (686) 1,070
TOTAL NON OPERATING REVENUE - OTHER 1] 140 0 838 (838)
NET MARGIN $15 $25 $384 $152 $232
EBIDA $75 $97 $759 $583 $176




Q%Umon ouniy

RESOLUTION NUMBER 2024-21
A RESOLUTION RESCINDING THE OLD UNION COUNTY ROAD POLICY
AND ADOPTING A NEW UNION COUNTY ROAD POLICY

WHEREAS, by statute, Union County is responsible for the maintenance and operation of various
dedicated and accepted roads within the boundaries of Union County; and

WHEREAS, Union County previously adopted a 1997 Road Policy with a 2007 amendment, which
sets forth standard policies and procedures to be followed not only by the Union County Road

Department, but by others desiring to work on, under or adjacent to any County Road or in any County
right of way; and

WHEREAS, it has been determined that necessary changes and modifications need to be made to the
existing Road Policy.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the attached 2024 Union County Road Policy hereby
is adopted as the official Road Policy for Union County. Any and all Road Policies and amendments
other than the attached 2024 Road Policy that may have been adopted, used, or made available through
the County or the County Road Department are hereby rescinded.

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this day of 11™ day of January, 2024.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF UNION COUNTY, NEW MEXICO

ATTEST | By:
SEAL
Brenda Green, County Clerk Clayton Kiesling, Chairman

W. Carr Vincent, Member

Lloyd Miller, Member



N\

ouniy

Union

Union County Maintained Road Policy

Adopted January 11, 2024



TABLE OF CONTENTS

SECTION I: General ProviSiONS. . ....e.ueeee ettt et eie e ieaneens 1
SECTION II Maintenance ClassifiCation...........o.oiviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 3
SECTION IIT: Subdivision ROAAS......vveuireiiit i 4
SECTION IV: County Maintained Road Maintenance..........o.ooooviiiiiiniiieiiniin, 5

SECTION V: Routine Administration of the Road Network.........ccovvivviiiiiiiiiinecieeneennnl0

SECTION VI: County Road Management/Administration...............ooovviiininiiiiiinnnn.. 7
SECTION VII: Agreement Required for Exchange of Benefits for Road Work..........cooeeeee. 12
SECTION VII: Miscellaneous Provisions.........o.vveeiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 14

SECTION X AT M OIS . ..ot ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt e et et taa s e aae e e e 15



Page |1

SECTION I: GENERAL PROVISIONS

Purpose. The purpose of this document, hereinafter referred to as the Road Policy, is to
establish policies and procedures for the orderly and consistent management and
administration of Union County Maintained Roads and to provide the Union County Board of
County Commissioners (BOCC) a uniform process and system to ensure that fair and equitable
treatment is exercised to provide County Maintained Road services. The overall purpose of this
document is to establish standards for design, construction, and maintenance of safe and
durable roads for the benefit of all citizens of the County within the limitations of funding,
manpower, and equipment available to the County. The Commission strives to maintain
County Maintained Roads to the best of its ability, given its limited resources. Union County is
responsible for maintaining approximately 1,200 miles of County Maintained Roads, with
limited resources.

Applicability. This document applies to all County Maintained Roads located within the
unincorporated areas of Union County, New Mexico. This document also applies to the
platting, design and maintenance of any road within a proposed subdivision, in conjunction
with the requirements of the New Mexico Subdivision Act, NMSA 1978, §§ 47-6-1, et seq. (as
amended), and the Union County Subdivision Ordinance (as amended).

Declaration of Union County Maintained Roads. All roads which have been established as a
Union County Maintained Road pursuant to the laws of New Mexico by the following, and
with acceptance by the Union County BOCC:
1. Petition and declaration by Union County BOCC as recorded in minutes of such
proceedings.
2. Dedication to use and benefit of the public by filed plat if approved and adopted by the
Union County BOCC
3. Deeded to Union County from the landowner by Warranty Deed, Quit Claim Deed, or
other legal deed.
Easement.
Prescriptive right.
Donation by owner.
Purchased by Union County.
Power of eminent domain.
Other legal acquisition by Union County.

MO0 G LA

In certain instances, roads within existing County subdivisions have been declared and
dedicated to the use and benefit of the public but have not been accepted for County
maintenance. Nothing in this policy shall change or alter the status of those roads that currently
exist but are not maintained by Union County.

ALL ROADS, AS DESCRIBED ABOVE, ARE HEREBY DECLARED to be Union County
Maintained Roads and all such roads shall be designated on the official Union County
Maintained Road Map (as updated), which is hereby and hereinafter declared a part of this
policy.

Union County Maintained Road Map. Each year a new updated map will be prepared and



JUSTIA

(Go to previous versions of this Article ¢)

2021 New Mexico Statutes
Chapter 47 - Property Law
Article 6 - County Subdivisions

= Section 47-6-1 - Short title.

= Section 47-6-2 - Definitions.

= Section 47-6-3 - Final plat; description.

» Section 47-6-4 - Final plat acknowledgment; affidavit.

= Section 47-6-5 - Dedication for public use; maintenance.

» Section 47-6-6 - Filing with county clerk; duties of county clerk.

» Section 47-6-7 - Vacation of plats; approval; duties of county clerk; effect.

Section 47-6-8 - Requirements prior to sale, lease or other conveyance.
Section 47-6-9 - Subdivision regulation; county authority.

Section 47-6-9.1 - Merger of contiguous parcels; prohibition.

Section 47-6-10 - County subdivision regulations; hearings; appeal.

Section 47-6-11 - Preliminary plat approval; summary review.

Section 47-6-11.1 - Expiration of preliminary plat.

Section 47-6-11.2 - Water permit required for final plat approval.

» Section 47-6-11.3 - Approval of final plats.

= Section 47-6-11.4 - Plat approval; proof of adequate water supply on lands from
which irrigation water rights have been severed.

= Section 47-6-13 - Repealed.

» Section 47-6-14 - Public hearings on preliminary plats.

» Section 47-6-15 - Appeals.

= Section 47-6-16 - Succeeding subdivisions.

» Section 47-6-17 - Disclosure.

= Section 47-6-18 - Advertising standards.



Section 47-6-19 - Road development.

Section 47-6-20 - Public agencies required to provide counties with information.

Section 47-6-21 - Information reports.

Section 47-6-22 - Time limit on administrative action.

Section 47-6-23 - Right of inspection; rescission.

Section 47-6-24 - Schedule of compliance.

Section 47-6-25 - Suspension of right of sale.

Section 47-6-25.1 - Attorney general; district attorneys; investigation.

Section 47-6-26 - Injunctive relief; mandamus.

Section 47-6-27 - Criminal penalties.

Section 47-6-27.1 - Private remedies.

Section 47-6-27.2 - Approval necessary for utility connection.
Section 47-6-28 - Use of fees.
Section 47-6-29 - Jurisdiction.

Disclaimer: These codes may not be the most recent version. New Mexico may have more current or
accurate information. We make no warranties or guarantees about the accuracy, completeness, or
adequacy of the information contained on this site or the information linked to on the state site. Please
check official sources.

This site is protected by reCAPTCHA and the Google Privacy Policy and Terms of Service apply.



Page |2

submitted for approval to the Union County BOCC.

Administrative Fees. In order to defray and/or offset a portion of the cost and/or expenses of the
administration of private requests (culvert for private driveway, cattle guard requested by
landowner, etc.) versus public requests, the Board of County Commissioners has established
procedures that require an application and payment of an administrative fee for private requests.
The administrative fee for this policy shall be established at $50.00 per entity, per application and
can be changed, altered, or amended by the Union County BOCC as it deems fit.



Page |3

SECTION II: MAINTENANCE CLASSIFICATION

County Maintained Road. A County Maintained Road is a road that has been accepted for
full County maintenance. Each County Maintained Road is, or will be, assigned a number
and/or a name. Maintenance on County Maintained Roads may include routine maintenance, as
defined below, but may also include pavement, asphalt, chip seal, grading, shredding,
replacement of base coarse, installation and repair of drainage structures and/or cattle guards,
snow removal, pothole repair, signage, resurfacing, weed control, mowing, and such other
maintenance as may from time to time be determined. Routine maintenance typically consists
of blading and shaping roadway surfaces (typically caliche or dirt) with the repair and
maintenance of existing cattle guards and culverts as further detailed herein.

Classification. For internal scheduling purposes only, the County Road Department may
classify County Maintained Roads according to their road surface, i.e., dirt, caliche, etc.

Snow Removal. As with road maintenance, the County's ability to remove snow from County
Maintained Roads is limited by available resources. The County has limited graders and other
snow removal equipment. As a result, it is necessary to prioritize snow removal.

Snow removal shall proceed in the following order, unless emergency situations dictate
otherwise:

1. Those County Maintained Roads, which are essential for emergency services, shall
be the first priority for snow removal.

2. School Bus Routes. New Mexico law, at NMSA § 22-16-10, authorizes the County
to remove snow on any school route. School Bus Routes shall be the second priority for
snow removal.

3. Thereafter, as time and equipment permit, the Road Department shall remove snow
from non-essential County Maintained Roads in the order of priority established for
routine maintenance. Specifically, after roads for essential emergency services and
school routes are cleared, the Road Department shall begin clearing non-essential
County Maintained Roads.

Treatment of School Bus Routes. School bus routes that are on private roads will not be
maintained by the County. However, as noted above, the County is authorized by New
Mexico law to remove snow from any school bus route, including private roads.

Treatment of Private Roads. Absent a declared emergency or an exchange of benefits
agreement as detailed in Section VII, the County shall not maintain any private road. The
County shall not remove snow from a private road unless, the private road is a school bus route
as set out above.



JUSTIA

(Go to previous versions of this Section ¢>

2021 New Mexico Statutes

Chapter 22 - Public Schools

Article 16 - Transportation of Students
Section 22-16-10 - Use of state or
county equipment for snow removal.

Universal Citation: NM Stat § 22-16-10 (2021)

The state or any county may, in order to provide for the public health, safety and welfare,
use its road equipment for snow removal on any school bus route.

History: 1953 Comp., § 77-14-10, enacted by Laws 1975, ch. 79, § 1.
Disclaimer: These codes may not be the most recent version. New Mexico may have more current or
accurate information. We make no warranties or guarantees about the accuracy, completeness, or

adequacy of the information contained on this site or the information linked to on the state site. Please
check official sources.

This site is protected by reCAPTCHA and the Google Privacy Policy and Terms of Service apply.



SECTION III: SUBDIVISION ROADS

County Acceptance of Subdivision Roads. No road will be accepted by the County nor shall
said road be part of the County Maintained Road system, or subject to County maintenance
unless the road is approved by the Union County BOCC pursuant to the County’s Subdivision
Ordinance. All roads built or constructed in a Union County subdivision must meet the current
minimum specifications, which are in existence at that time, and the subdivider must reasonably
demonstrate that the roads to be constructed will receive use and are necessary to provide
access.

Number of Access Roads. Union County reserves the right to determine and/or regulate the
number of access roads to or from the subdivision that connect with public roads or
thoroughfares, depending on the size of the subdivision, the number of units in the subdivision,
location of the subdivision, the public road or thoroughfare from which access to or from the
subdivisions with traffic volumes, overall pattern of usage and/or development of the proposed
access roads and any other factor, which in the opinion of Union County, impacts or may impact
the health, safety and well-being of the County or County residents.

Reclassification Standards

In considering a request for Union County to accept or reclassify any road as a County
Maintained Road, no road may be reclassified or accepted if the road is not constructed to meet
the minimum standards as set forth in the Policy, or in the case of a subdivision road, the
Union County Subdivision Ordinance, which is in place as of the date of the request for
classification. The Board of County Commissioners may accept the request in whole or in-part,
or may designate only a portion of a road for reclassification.

A road shall not be reclassified as a County Maintained Road if maintenance is impossible,
dangerous, or unreasonably costly. Nor shall any road be reclassified for County maintenance
if environmental problems are identified in an environmental assessment (if any).



Page |5

SECTION IV: COUNTY MAINTAINED ROAD MAINTENANCE

Maintenance Schedule. Regular maintenance (grading and shaping) of a County Maintained
Road will generally take place once a year, at a minimum. However, certain natural factors,
such as drought, monsoon or excessive snow, may alter or hinder the regular maintenance
schedule. The County, at its discretion, reserves the right to initiate and implement the
construction, development or maintenance of any County Maintained Road or any road
accepted by the County as a County Maintained Road at County expense whenever it is so
deemed appropriate and beneficial to the overall County Maintained Road network by either
the Union County Road Superintendent (Road Superintendent) and/or the Union County
BOCC and provided there are sufficient funds, manpower and equipment to accomplish such
work. The County will only maintain roads that are County Maintained Roads at the date of
instituting this policy or that have been accepted by the Union County BOCC in a publicly held
Commission meeting as set out hereafter.

A. Real Property Rights Required. Real property rights shall be granted to the County
for all roads or rights-of-way accepted and approved by the Union County BOCC in a
publicly held Commission meeting, within six (6) months after preliminary approval, as is
determined legal and necessary by the County Attorney to ensure appropriate legal rights
and interests of such roads are vested to the County.

B. Minimum Right-of-Way Widths Required. A minimum right of-way width of at
least sixty (60) feet shall be granted by fee title to the County for all privately owned roads
accepted by the County as County Maintained Roads. The County, at its discretion, may
require a wider right-of-way in cases that a wider right-of-way can be determined as
necessary for public health, welfare, and safety. Nothing contained herein shall be
construed as altering the requirements for roadway width in subdivisions approved prior to
the institution of this policy and right of way widths for roads in approved subdivisions
hereafter approved shall be as specified in the County’s Subdivision Ordinance. Further
nothing contained herein obligates the Union County BOCC to accept any road in any
subdivision, whether approved before or after institution of this policy, as a County
Maintained Road. The Board of County Commissioners reserves the right to alter required
road widths on a case-by-case basis when necessary to preserve the health, welfare, and
safety of the public in a publicly held meeting.

C. Minimum Road Construction Standards. Union County standards specifications for
road construction and/or road maintenance for any non-subdivision road must meet the
following conditions:

1. The road shall have a minimum top measurement of twenty (20) feet.

2. The road sub-base shall be compacted to at least ninety-five percent (95%)
compaction rate.

3. The road base shall consist of at least six (6) inches of NON-SPEC. Base Course
(typically caliche).

4. Each road shall have at least a two percent (2%) crown.



Page |6

SECTION V: ROUTINE ADMINISTRATION OF THE ROAD NETWORK

Report and Resolution Presentation. On an annual basis, the Road Superintendent shall
present a report to the Union County BOCC in a publicly held meeting for its consideration and
approval, which certifies to the Secretary of the New Mexico Department of Transportation
(NMDOT) the total mileage, names, route, and location of public roads maintained by Union
County, pursuant to NMSA, Section 67-3-28.3 (Supp. 1995). As part of the presentation, the
Road Superintendent will report to the Commissioners the total miles of County Maintained
Roads in the network, any additions and/or deletions, and estimated maintenance cost of the
network.

Also on an annual basis, the Road Superintendent shall present a resolution to the Union
County BOCC for its consideration and approval which authorizes the submission of an
application to NMDOT for assistance from the Local Government Road Fund to perform
necessary repair of and construction of roads in Union County, authorizing the expenditure of
matching funds for categories of the Local Government Road Fund (i.e., CAP, CO-OP, and
School Bus Routes), and recommend projects on which the funds may be used.

Establishing Speed Limits. Speed limits in Union County shall be pursuant to New Mexico
State Statutes. Speed limits may be changed, modified, or altered pursuant to statutory
provisions set forth by the State of New Mexico.

Temporary Road Closures. Any road closure of five days or less for an emergency or
temporary basis may be approved by the Road Superintendent and/or County Manager. All
road closures for more than five days in length must be approved by the Union County BOCC.
The Union County Road Department (Road Department) shall use best efforts to maintain
ingress and egress on all County Maintained Roads, during temporary road closures.

Acquisition of Water for County Maintained Road Maintenance. From time to time, it may
be necessary for Union County to obtain water from property owners/entities to use while
making repairs, constructing and/or otherwise working on County Maintained Roads. When, at
the discretion of the Road Superintendent, it is not feasible or cost effective to drive back to
one of the County’s water access facilities and load the trucks with water, the Road
Superintendent shall negotiate and enter into a contract with private property owners/water
rights owners, for the acquisition or donation of water. The Road Superintendent will work
with the County Manager on all required contractual processes.



<G0 to previous versions of this Section ~L>

2021 New Mexico Statutes

Chapter 67 - Highways

Article 3 - State Transportation
Commission

Section 67-3-28.3 - Secretary of
highway and transportation; counties;
public roads maintained by counties;
duties.

Universal Citation: NM Stat § 67-3-28.3 (2021)

A. The board of county commissioners of each of the respective counties shall by May 1,
1988 and by April 1 of every year thereafter certify reports to the secretary of highway and
transportation of the total mileage of public roads maintained by each county as of May 1,
1988, and by [as of] April 1 of every year thereafter [, of that year]; provided that in their
reports the boards of county commissioners shall identify each of the public roads
maintained by them by name, route and location. By July 1 of every year, the secretary of
highway and transportation shall verify the reports of the counties and revise, if
necessary, the total mileage of public roads maintained by each county and the mileage
verified by the secretary of highway and transportation shall be the official mileage of
public roads maintained by each county. After August 1, 1988, no distribution of amounts
to any county for road purposes shall be made until that county has certified mileages to
the secretary of highway and transportation in accordance with this section.

B. If a county has not made the required mileage certification pursuant to this section by



May 1, 1988 and by April 1 of every year thereafter, the secretary of highway and
transportation shall estimate the mileage maintained by those counties for the purpose of
making distribution to all counties, and the amount calculated to be distributed each
month to those counties not certifying mileage shall be reduced by one-third each month
for that fiscal year and that amount not distributed to those counties shall be distributed
equally to all counties which have certified mileages.

History: 1978 Comp., § 67-3-28.3, enacted by Laws 1987, ch. 347, § 22; 1988, ch. 106, § 3.

ANNOTATIONS

Bracketed material. — The brackets in the first sentence in Subsection A have been
added by the compiler for clarity and to indicate apparent surplusage following the
amendment of this section by Laws 1988, ch. 106, § 3. The bracketed material was not
enacted by the legislature and it is not part of the law.

The 1988 amendment, effective May 18, 1988, designated the existing provisions of the
section as Subsection A; substituted "Secretary of highway and transportation” for "Chief
highway administrator" in the catchline; in Subsection A, substituted "May 1, 1988 and by
April 1 of every year thereafter" for "August 1, 1987 and by August 1 of every odd-numbered
year thereafter" and "May 1, 1988, and by April 1 of every year thereafter" for "January 1" in
the first sentence, substituted "By July 1 of every year" for "By December 1, 1987 and
December 1 of every odd-numbered year thereafter” in the second sentence, and
substituted "August 1, 1988" for "July 1, 1988", in the last sentence; deleted the former last
sentence regarding mileage estimates; and added Subsection B.

Disclaimer: These codes may not be the most recent version. New Mexico may have more current or
accurate information. We make no warranties or guarantees about the accuracy, completeness, or
adequacy of the information contained on this site or the information linked to on the state site. Please
check official sources.

This site is protected by reCAPTCHA and the Google Privacy Policy and Terms of Service apply.



Page |7

SECTION VI. COUNTY ROAD MANAGEMENT/ADMINISTRATION

General Provisions. Since there are limited funds available for road work each fiscal year, the
County must carefully review the requirements and costs of manpower, equipment, and
materials for road work currently being performed and the contractual or legal obligations
requiring road work during the upcoming fiscal year before workable and practical decisions
can be made regarding additional requests for road work.

Obstructions and Injuries to Road. Under NMSA 67-7-1 through 67-7-2, no person may in
any manner obstruct or damage any County Maintained Road. Specifically, New Mexico law
prohibits any person from placing on any County Maintained Road a gate, fence, stone, timber,
trees, or any other obstruction. Additionally, New Mexico law prohibits any person from
damaging any County Maintained Road, including any culverts, cattle guards, signs, sign posts
or bridges. In addition, the County may institute and maintain a claim for actual damages
resulting from an unauthorized road cut or drainage alteration, obstruction, or other damage to
County roads including recovery of the County’s costs of attorney’s fees. Penalties and
damages for violations are included in Union County Ordinance Relating to Obstruction of
Public Highways (Ordinance #3, adopted October 19, 2010).

Any building, structure, gate, fence, vehicle, tree, plant, or anything else that is situated,
placed, left, installed, or otherwise located within a Union County Maintained Road Easement
can be removed, at any time, without notice, by the Road Department. Union County shall not
be required to reimburse any owner, property owner, resident, or anyone else for damages,
costs, or expenses, or be liable in any other way, for the County's actions in removing any
structure or item that is placed, left, constructed or is otherwise in a Union County Maintained
Road Easement. Private parties or organizations shall not perform any type of construction or
other activity such as, but not limited to, utility installation or constructing a driveway/road
intersection without first applying for and securing proper authorization as set forth in this
policy, thereafter, complying fully with all provisions and standards set forth in the
authorization.

Procedures for Establishing Right-of-Ways or Alteration or Establishment of New County
Roads. The procedures to be followed when the Union County BOCC establishes rights-of-way
or alters or opens new roads is set forth in§§ 67-5-5 through 67-5-21, NMSA, as amended.

Procedures for Alteration or Discontinuation of County or Public Roads. The procedures to
be followed when the Union County BOCC discontinue/vacate roads is set forth in §§ 67-5-4
NMSA 2008, as amended. Whenever, in the opinion of the Road Superintendent or Union
County BOCC any road or part of a road that is open and maintained by Union County; (1) is
not needed; or (2) the repairs of the same are burdensome and in excess of the benefits
therefrom; the County may proceed to determine whether or not said road should be closed. The
procedures set forth in NMSA Section 67-5-1 et. seq. will govern and apply to all said road
closures.



(Go to previous versions of this Section

=/

2021 New Mexico Statutes

Chapter 67 - Highways

Article 7 - Obstructions and Injuries to
Highways |

Section 67-7-1 - [Obstructing roads;
penalties. ]

Universal Citation: NM Stat § 67-7-1 (2021)

It shall hereafter be unlawful for any person or persons to in any manner obstruct any
public road in this state, by putting therein or thereon any obstruction whatsoever, and all
persons convicted of a violation of this section shall upon conviction before any court of
competent jurisdiction be fined in any sum not to exceed fifty dollars ($50.00) or be
imprisoned in the county jail for a period not to exceed thirty days, and pay all the costs of
prosecution, or both such fine and imprisonment at the discretion of the court trying the

cause.

History: Laws 1903, ch. 58, § 2; Code 1915, § 2698; C.S. 1929, § 64-1307; 1941 Comp., §
58-602; 1953 Comp., § 55-6-2.

ANNOTATIONS

Cross references. — For construction of cattle guards where private fences cross school
bus routes, see 22-16-8 NMSA 1978.

For unlawful permitting of animals on highways, see 30-8-13 NMSA 1978.



For placing of equipment by utilities upon highways, see 62-1-2 NMSA 1978.

Belief road private not to be considered. — In prosecuting violations of this statutory
offense, the intent or belief that the road was a private one is not to be considered by the
courts. State v. Brown, 1963-NMSC-127, 72 N.M. 274, 383 P.2d 243.

This section prohibits placing structures on highways for which prosecutions may
be had through the district attorney, and the commission has full control in such matters.
1938 Op. Att'y Gen. No. 38-1946.

Prosecution for obstruction with gate. — A person may be prosecuted under this
section for obstructing a public road by means of a gate. 1916 Op. Att'y Gen. No. 16-1857.

Gates are obstructions to roads. 1915 Op. Att'y Gen. No. 15-1704.

Am. Jur. 2d, A.L.R. and C.J.S. references. — 39 Am. Jur. 2d Highways, Streets and
Bridges §8§ 273, 274.

Right or duty of highway contractor as to barricading street or highway, 7 A.L.R. 1203, 104
A.L.R. 955.

Closing or obstructing street temporarily to permit its use for purposes of sport or
entertainment, 34 A.L.R. 270.

Liability for injury due to condition of part of street occupied by street railway, 54 A.L.R.
1291.

Public contractor's liability to property owner for obstructing street, 68 A.L.R. 1510.

Attracting people in such numbers as to obstruct access to the neighboring premises, as
nuisance, 2 A.L.R.2d 437.

Duty of highway construction contractor to provide temporary way or detour around
obstruction, 29 A.L.R.2d 876.

Liability for injuries occasioned by falling of awning or the like, 34 A.L.R.2d 486.

Liability of private landowner for vegetation obscuring view at highway or street
intersection, 69 A.L.R.4th 1092.

Measure and elements of damages for injury to bridge, 31 A.L.R.5th 171.



40 C.J.S. Highways §8 231, 248.

Disclaimer: These codes may not be the most recent version. New Mexico may have more current or
accurate information. We make no warranties or guarantees about the accuracy, completeness, or
adequacy of the information contained on this site or the information linked to on the state site. Please
check official sources.

This site is protected by reCAPTCHA and the Google Privacy Policy and Terms of Service apply.




CGO to previous versions of this Section l.>

2021 New Mexico Statutes

Chapter 67 - Highways

Article 7 - Obstructions and Injuries to
Highways

Section 67-7-2 - [Obstructions and
damage to highways and bridges
prohibited.]

Universal Citation: NM Stat § 67-7-2 (2021)

No person or persons shall erect any fence, house or other structure, or dig pits or holes in
or upon any highway or place thereon any stone, timber, trees or any obstruction
whatsoever; and no person or persons shall tear down, burn or otherwise damage any
bridge of any highway, or cause waste water or the water from any ditch, road, drain or
flume to flow in or upon any road or highway so as to damage the same.

History: Laws 1905, ch. 124, § 36; Code 1915, § 2701; C.S. 1929, § 64-1310; 1941 Comp., §
58-603; 1953 Comp., § 55-6-3.

ANNOTATIONS
Cross references. — For criminal trespass, see 30-14-1 NMSA 1978.
For criminal damage to property, see 30-15-1 NMSA 1978.

Am. Jur. 2d, A.L.R. and C.J.S. references. — 39 Am. Jur. 2d Highways, Streets and
Bridges §§ 273 to 281.



40 C.J.S. Highways § 221.

Disclaimer: These codes may not be the most recent version. New Mexico may have more current or
accurate information. We make no warranties or guarantees about the accuracy, completeness, or

adequacy of the information contained on this site or the information linked to on the state site. Please
check official sources.

This site is protected by reCAPTCHA and the Google Privacy Policy and Terms of Service apply.



UNTON COUNTY , NM
JOYCE _ANN SOWERS, CLERK
201000895
. Book 65 Page 385

£
UNION COUNTY ' 1}3{ / 2}%} %’0 10 0% :10:36 PM| STATE OF NEW MEXICO

ORDINANCE NO. 3

RELATING TO OBSTRUCTION OF PUBLIC HIGHWAYS, DAMAGE TO PUBLIC
HIGHWAYS OR BRIDGES, ALLOWING WATER TO FLOW UPON PUBLIC HIGHWAYS,
PRESCRIBING PENALTIES AND DAMAGES FOR VIOLATIONS.

BEIT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF UNION COUNTY,
NEW MEXICO:

Section 1. DEFINITIONS.—As used in this ordinance:

A. “person” means any individual, estate, trust, receiver, pattnership, firm, joint venture,
syndicate, company, corporation, association, club, institution, political subdivision, government
agency, farmet, mayordomo of acequia, or other legal entity.

B. “highway” means all property dedicated or intended for public use for access to
abutting lands or subject to public easements therefore, and whether designated as a street, highway,
thoroughfare, patkway, throughway, expressway, road, avenue, boulevard, lane, place, circle or
however otherwise designated, located within the county.

Section 2. OFFENSES.— No person shall:

A. Dam the waters of any stream so as to cause the same to overflow any highway, or
damage or weaken the abutments, walls or embankments of any bridge or highway.

B, Erect any fence, or other structure upon or dig pits or holes in any highway unless
authorized by proper authority.

C. Place any house, stone, timber, trees or any obstruction whatsoever upon any highway
or in any manner obstruct any highway.

D. Tear down, burn or otherwise damage any bridge of any highway.

E. Cause waste water or the water from any ditch, road, highway, drain, or flume to flow
in or upon any highway so as to damage the same.

F, Obstruct any ford, or road leading thereto, or dig down the banks of any ford or erect
any dam ot any embankment or other obstruction in a stream where a ford is located, or wingdam or
erect any other obstruction on the banks of a stream for the purpose of raising the water of such
stream upon any ford, so as to render said ford impassable, or more difficult of passage than
heretofore.




G. Through neglect, oversight, carelessness or design, allow irrigation or drainage waters
to flow upon any highway so as to hinder, delay or obstruct travel thereon.

H. Through neglect, oversight, carelessness or design, allow water to flow from any
reservoir, tank or watering trough upon any highway so as to hinder, delay or obstruct travel thereon.

Section3.  PENALTIES.—Any petson found violating any provision of Section 2 of this
ordinance, shall, upon conviction, be punished by a fine of not more than five hundred dollars
($500.00) or by imprisonment in the County jail for not more than ninety (90) days or both.

Section4.  DAMAGES.—Any person violating any provision of Section 2 of this
ordinance shall be liable to any other person for all personal injuries or property damages caused by
reason of such violation,

ADOPTING BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF UNION COUNTY THIS 19" DAY OF
OCTOBER, 2010,

UNION ¢ 7
Jo QUNTY , NpM O ¢
Yok AbiNO gomgss CLERK | Rithard Al‘gl%
; Book 5 Page 3gg - Commission‘Chairman

2
10/20/2010 032 10:36 !?Mr

. et Donstf

J ust1 ennett
Member

ENC NV

Van Robeitson
Member

, Goe
COUNTY CLERK




JUSTIA

<G0 to previous versions of this Article ~L>

2021 New Mexico Statutes
Chapter 67 - Highways
Article 5 - Vacation, Alteration and
Establishment of County Roads and
Bridges
= Section 67-5-1 - [County bridges, township and section lines are parts of public
highways; width.]

Section 67-5-2 - [Width of public highways.]
Section 67-5-3 - Repealed.

Section 67-5-4 - [Discontinuance; procedure; viewers; county-line roads.]

Section 67-5-5 - [Alteration or establishment; petition; contents. ]

Section 67-5-6 - Establish rights-of-way.

Section 67-5-7 - [Petitioners' deposit or bond covering viewing expense. ]

Section 67-5-8 - [Proposed county-line roads; petitions; viewers; opening and
maintaining. ]

Section 67-5-9 - [Viewers for proposed alteration or establishment; appointment;
notice of time and place for viewing; posting.]

Section 67-5-10 - [Warrants to viewers; contents.]

Section 67-5-11 - [Service of warrants; return; refusal of viewer to serve; forfeiture. ]

Section 67-5-12 - Laying out road; assessment for damages; survey.

Section 67-5-13 - [Replacing road viewers.]

Section 67-5-14 - [Report of viewers; contents; compensation. ]

= Section 67-5-15 - [Consideration of viewer's report by county commissioners;
additional data.]

= Section 67-5-16 - [Approval of road opening; recording viewers' report. ]



Section 67-5-17 - [ Notice of road opening; prerequisites; posting.]
Section 67-5-18 - [Damages exceeding benefits; persons under disability.]
Section 67-5-19 - [Determination of damages on appeal to district court. ]
Section 67-5-20 - [Establishment on petition of all owners.]

Section 67-5-21 - [Private roads; procedure for establishment.]

Disclaimer: These codes may not be the most recent version. New Mexico may have more current or
accurate information. We make no warranties or guarantees about the accuracy, completeness, or

adequacy of the information contained on this site or the information linked to on the state site. Please
check official sources.

This site is protected by reCAPTCHA and the Google Privacy Policy and Terms of Service apply.



<G0 to previous versions of this Section .L)

2021 New Mexico Statutes

Chapter 67 - Highways

Article 5 - Vacation, Alteration and
Establishment of County Roads and
Bridges

Section 67-5-4 - [ Discontinuance;
procedure; viewers; county-line
roads.]

Universal Citation: NM Stat § 67-5-4 (2021)

Whenever, in the opinion of the board of county commissioners of any county, any road or
part of road then established and maintained as a public highway is not needed, or the
repairs of the same are burdensome and in excess of the benefits therefrom, they may at a
regular meeting appoint a board of commissioners of three freeholders of the county as
viewers, to view such road or part of road, and make report thereof to the board of county
commissioners at their next regular meeting, setting forth fully their finding, and if they
recommend a discontinuance of such road or part of road, then the board of county
commissioners may order the same vacated: provided, that if such road runs on the county
line between two counties, the county commissioners of both the counties interested shall
appoint viewers and the concurrence of the county commissioners of both counties shall be
necessary to vacate it.

History: Laws 1905, ch. 124, § 3; Code 1915, § 2655; C.S. 1929, § 64-704; 1941 Comp., §
58-404; 1953 Comp., § 55-4-4.



ANNOTATIONS

Legislative intent. — Sections 67-5-4, 67-2-6 and 67-2-7 NMSA 1978 all relate to the
vacation or abandonment of public highways, streets or roads by formal declaration,
determination or order of the state or the appropriate commission, department, institution,
bureau or political subdivision thereof, being in pari materia, these statutes should be
construed, if reasonably possible, so as to give effect to every provision of each, and these
statutes evince an intent on the part of the legislature to provide a formal procedure for the
abandonment or vacation of public roads, streets and highways; hence the district courts
are not vested with this power. Chavez v. County of Valencia, 1974-NMSC-035, 86 N.M.
205, 521 P.2d 1154.

Right to object to closing by nonabutting property owner. — One whose property
does not abut on a closed section of a street or road ordinarily has no right to complain of
the closing or vacation of such road, provided he still has reasonable access to the general
street or road system. Mandell v. Board of Comm'rs, 1940-NMSC-003, 44 N.M. 109, 99
P.2d 108.

Proof of special damages by nonabutting owner. — Proof of some special or
peculiar damage to a claimant, though not an abutting owner, may support damages
resulting from closing of road or street, but the damage suffered must be substantially
different in kind, and not merely in degree, from that suffered by the public in general.
Mandell v. Board of Comm'rs, 1940-NMSC-003, 44 N.M. 109, 99 P.2d 108.

Complaint seeking vacation proceedings review dismissed. — Dismissal of
complaint seeking review of proceedings by board of county commissioners in vacating a
highway within county but outside of a city, and seeking injunctive relief as an interference
with plaintiffs' private easement of way, required to be appraised for correctness upon a
determination of whether plaintiffs had an easement of right-of-way, or at least one
superior to the statutory right of the county to vacate the section of street or road in
question. Mandell v. Board of Comm'rs, 1940-NMSC-003, 44 N.M. 109, 99 P.2d 108.

Statutory requirements for viewers' report. — Statute does not require viewers'
report to contain more than a finding that the road or street sought to be vacated is not
needed, and the recommendation that it be closed. Mandell v. Board of Comm'rs, 1940-
NMSC-003, 44 N.M. 109, 99 P.2d 108.

Jurisdiction over subject matter. — Although the county entered an appearance in the
quiet title suit and participated in the proceedings therein conducted by the district court,
this did not confer jurisdiction or power in the district court over the subject matter of the



suit, insofar as the subject matter of the suit was concerned with the quieting of title in the
roads, as subject-matter jurisdiction cannot be conferred by consent of the parties. Chavez
v. County of Valencia, 1974-NMSC-035, 86 N.M. 205, 521 P.2d 1154.

Effect of section. — This section is authority for the board of county commissioners of
Bernalillo county vacating and closing a portion of a public road located in a platted area
outside of the Albuquerque city limits. 1958 Op. Att'y Gen. No. 58-87.

General rule is to the effect that where the absolute and unqualified fee is in the
municipality or other public agency, it divests the original owner of its entire interest so
that upon discontinuance of the way as such the title does not revert to the grantor or
abutting owner but remains in the municipality or other agency unaffected by the vacation.
1958 Op. Att'y Gen. No. 58-87.

Am. Jur. 2d, A.L.R. and C.J.S. references. — 39 Am. Jur. 2d Highways, Streets and
Bridges §§ 137 to 139, 154.

Right to compensation by nonabutting owner for vacation of section of highway, 49 A.L.R.
330, 93 A.L.R. 639.

Validity and construction of regulations as to subdivision maps or plats, 11 A.L.R.2d 524.

39A C.J.S. Highways § 116.

Disclaimer: These codes may not be the most recent version. New Mexico may have more current or
accurate information. We make no warranties or guarantees about the accuracy, completeness, or
adequacy of the information contained on this site or the information linked to on the state site. Please
check official sources.

This site is protected by reCAPTCHA and the Google Privacy Policy and Terms of Service apply.



Page |8

Priorities for Road Vacations. The County Commission may permanently vacate a County
road when it can be determined that the road will not in the foreseeable future be necessary,
beneficial, or valuable for public use as a County road, and as such the County would not in the
foreseeable future be in a position after such road is vacated, to have to obtain and use County
funds to reacquire right-of-way to the road, and the road is not necessary or beneficial for any of
the following purposes, all of which are hereby declared to be of substantial value to Union
County:

I. Used as officially declared school bus route or postal road.

2. Serves as a primary farm to market road which has and may provide substantial

revenues for the County.

3. Serves as primary access for production of minerals which may provide substantial

revenues to the County.

4. Serves as primary access to recreational areas for a substantial number of Union

County citizens

Cattle Guards. Any person in the County who wishes to have a cattle guard installed on any
County Maintained Road must apply by submitting an application form to the Road
Superintendent. An administrative fee of $50.00 and installation fee of $300.00 must accompany
this application. All forms are to be provided by the Road Department and are available on
Union County’s website. (Appendix A). If the request for installation of a new cattle guard is
approved, the applicant must provide the cattle guard at the applicant’s expense and the cattle
guard must meet Road Department specifications. (Appendix B)

The application for a cattle guard will be reviewed on a case-by-case basis. In determining
whether to install a cattle guard, the Road Superintendent will consider the circumstances at the
requested cattle guard site, including but not limited to number and location of other existing
cattle guards, convenience of relevant fencing and other appropriate factors. The County
reserves the right to refuse to install a cattle guard unless it is required on a school bus route.
The County will typically only install cattle guards at or near section lines. However, the final
location will be at the discretion of the Road Superintendent.

All work to install a cattle guard on a County Maintained Road will be performed by the Road
Department. No person or entity will be allowed to perform any work on cattle guards. Any
person or entity that performs any work on cattle guards other than the Road Department is
liable for any damage, injury or accident caused from cleaning, maintenance, or improper
installation of a cattle guard.

The Road Department is responsible for maintaining and cleaning cattle guards and all such
work will be performed by Road Department personnel. Cleaning of cattle guards include
removal of sand, dirt, silt, and other debris which renders the cattle guard ineffective. In the
event that a cattle guard needs to be cleaned before Road Department personnel return for
regularly scheduled maintenance, the Road Superintendent should be notified and a request
form (available on Union County’s website) for cattle guard cleaning can be completed and



Page |9

submitted so that the request is on record. Once the form is submitted, the Road Department has
15 (fifteen) working days to complete the task.

The scope of work for cleaning cattle guards does not include cleaning or maintenance in the
winter season. Normal winter road maintenance, combined with winter storm weather
conditions (snow, freezing temperatures and wind) may result in a cattle guard being filled with
snow, ice or debris from snow removal operations and other regular winter road maintenance.
The County will not perform cleaning of cattle guards for snow, ice, or road maintenance
debris if the necessity for cleaning results from winter storm conditions and winter road
maintenance. Landowners, ranchers, and livestock owners are advised and cautioned not to
depend or rely upon cattle guards to secure livestock away from County roads during winter
weather conditions.

In the event that any cattle guard located upon any County Road is deemed to be beyond repair
by the Road Superintendent due to age or damage, the cattle guard will be replaced or removed.
The cost of replacement of any existing cattle guard that is in present need of replacement will
be the responsibility of the County. If the damage to the cattle guard is directly caused by an
identifiable event, act or party, the County will pursue the cost of replacement from the party or
parties who are responsible for the damage.

If a cattle guard is determined by the Road Superintendent to be no longer useful or necessary
for its intended purpose, the County may remove the cattle guard. Prior to such removal, the
County will post a notice of intent to remove such cattle guard at the location of the cattle guard.
The date for removal will be no earlier than ninety (90) days following the date of the notice
posted. During the ninety (90) day waiting period, persons or entities are entitled to submit
comments or objections to such removal, which will be considered by the Road Superintendent
prior to removal. The Road Superintendent’s decision will be the final agency action.

No portion of the policy will be deemed or considered to have vested any person or landowner
with the right to a particular size of cattle guard. The Road Department, upon determination that
road improvement or widening is necessary, may require replacement of existing cattle guards.
If the replacement of the cattle guard is due to development of lands, road safety concerns,
upgrade and improvement of the roadway, or other similar circumstances not related to the
agricultural utility of the cattle guard, the landowner or person who benefits from the use of the
cattle guard will not be responsible for the cost of replacement of the cattle guard.

Culverts.

Any person in the County who wishes to install a culvert on any County Maintained Road must
apply by submitting an application form to the Road Superintendent. An administrative fee of
$50.00 and installation fee of $150.00 must accompany this application. All forms are to be
provided by the Road Department and are available on Union County’s website. (Appendix C)



Page |10

The owner of the property is responsible for paying for the culvert(s) required for new road
access if: the installation of a culvert(s) is made necessary by the creation of a new access from
private property to a County Maintained Road, by any alteration of the natural flow of water
across private property by the owner, or for any other reason created by any owner of private
property.

The culvert(s) shall be installed by the Road Department with the final number of culverts and
sizing being at the discretion of the Road Superintendent, after reviewing the application and
evaluating the property.

After installation, the owner or occupier will be responsible for the maintenance and repair of
the road access and/or any related culvert(s). If there is need for maintenance or repair of the
culvert after installation, the owner or occupier has 30 (thirty) days to make such repair or
perform such maintenance after notification from the County. In the event of the property
owner’s failure to perform such maintenance, the County will perform repair and/or
maintenance as may be required for the protection of the County roads and related
appurtenances within the right-of-way. The responsible property owner will be billed if the
property owner fails to perform the required maintenance or repair on the road access or culvert
within the time frame specified above.

If a hazardous situation is detected, the property owner will be notified and requested to provide
an immediate remedy to the problem. If the property owner fails to react, the County will
correct the problem and bill the property owner for all incurred expenses.

Union County bar ditches are routinely cleaned out by Road Department personnel. The County
reserves the right to remove culverts if they are determined to be a hazard. If the County is at
fault for damage to a culvert, the County will replace the culvert at no cost to the landowner.

Utility Installation, Excavating, Cross Cuts or Other Cuts on County Maintained Roads.
No individual, third-party, governmental body, individual franchisee, utility, whether public or
private, or other entity shall do any excavating, cross cutting, digging, trenching or any other
work on or across a County Maintained Road without first contacting the Road Superintendent
and completing and submitting the appropriate application permit to perform such work. A
separate permit shall be required for each crosscut or other cuts on County Maintained Roads.
The application permit may be approved by concurrence of the Road Superintendent and the
County Manager after all appropriate paperwork has been received. All forms are provided by
the Road Department and are available on Union County’s website. (Appendix D)

All installations will be made in strict accordance with the detailed plan and profile drawing
submitted by applicant. It is further understood that the County will not be responsible for any
maintenance of any utility installed in a County Maintained Road, right-of-way or easement.
All utility installations must be thirty-six inches (36”) below the lowest point of the road cross
section, except high pressure gas lines, which must be forty-eight inches (48”) below the lowest



Page |11

point of the road cross section. High-pressures gas lines shall be clearly marked with appropriate
warning signs where the line intersects the road, right-of-way or easement.

All utility facilities parallel to a County Maintained Road and associated manholes, junction
boxes and/or any other above-grade apparatus shall be installed within five feet of the outer
right-of-way line. Minor variations will be considered on an individual basis. In no event shall
the installation be within close proximity of traveled portion of the roadway as to interfere with
off-road parking or road maintenance. Above-grade apparatus must be clearly marked with a
delineated warning marker acceptable to the Road Department.

Driveways. Any individual, third party, governmental body, individual franchisee, utility,
whether public or private or other entity that needs a driveway to enter their land from County
right-of-way must fill out the appropriate application. An administrative fee of $50.00 must
accompany this application. When the Road Superintendent receives the application, he or she
will decide what materials will be needed to complete the project in the right-of-way, at the
expense of the applicant, i.e. concrete, culvert, base course (caliche), ete. All forms are provided
by the Road Department and are available on Union County’s website. (Appendix E)



Page |12

SECTION VII: AGREEMENT REQUIRED FOR EXCHANGE OF
BENEFITS FOR ROAD WORK

County Work on Privately Owned Property. The County may enter into an agreement with
a private party to perform certain services on private property in specific cases where such an
exchange of benefits agreement would not violate the Public Purchases Act of the State of New
Mexico (Sections 13-1-1, et seq, NMSA, 1978 Compilation). The County shall not perform
work or perform any services on privately owned roads or property unless such an agreement
between the private property owner and Union County has been completed and fully executed.
Additionally, no County equipment shall be used on private property unless approved by the
County Manager and a Hold Harmless Agreement has been signed.

Work on County Maintained Roads by Private Parties. Private parties shall not perform
any road construction work (such as plowing, disking, ripping, rebuilding, etc.) on County
Maintained Roads except as may be specifically authorized by the County Manager in a written
agreement. Private parties may enter into an agreement with the County to perform certain
work and/or provide improvements on County Maintained Roads when such an agreement
would be in the best interest of the citizens of Union County and provide an improvement on
an existing County Maintained Road. No work shall be performed until and unless the private
party has completed and submitted a fully executed agreement to the County Manager. If
needed, private parties shall provide signage and traffic control devices, at their expense, as
required by the Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD). Said agreement
shall contain the following provisions:

A. Liability. The private party agrees to assume all liability and be responsible for any
actions that may result from any injury or damage that may occur while road work is
being performed by the private party and shall hold the County harmless and indemnify
the County from any claims for personal injury or property damage or other loss,
including attorney’s fees, occurring during such road work. The private party shall be
required to provide appropriate insurance coverage including bodily injury and property
damage naming the County as an additional ensured. Such liability and responsibility
shall remain from the time that the work is commenced until it is completed and
approved as acceptable by the Road Superintendent. Nothing contained herein shall be
construed as waiving any of the protections afforded the County pursuant to the New
Mexico Tort Claims Act, NMSA §41-4-1 et. seq.

B. Notification of County. The private party agrees to notify the Road Superintendent
prior to the start of work as to the location of the proposed work, the type of proposed
work, and the date that said work will start.

C. Minimum Standards. The private party agrees that any road work performed on
County Maintained Roads shall meet the minimum standards to satisfy the County for

such improvements,

It shall be the duty and responsibility of the County Manager to ensure that each agreement



JUSTIA

<G0 to previous versions of this Article

N

2021 New Mexico Statutes
Chapter 13 - Public Purchases and
Property

Article 1 - Procurement

Section 13-1-1 to 13-1-20 - Repealed.

Section 13-1-21 - Application of preferences.
Section 13-1-21.1 - Repealed.
Section 13-1-21.2 - Repealed.

Section 13-1-22 - Resident business, resident veteran business, resident contractor
and resident veteran contractor certification.

Section 13-1-22 - Resident business and resident contractor certification. (Effective
July 1, 2022.)

= Section 13-1-23 to 13-1-27 - Repealed.

= Section 13-1-28 - Short title.

= Section 13-1-29 - Rules of construction; purposes.

Section 13-1-30 - Application of the code.

Section 13-1-30.1 - Standardized classification codes; applicability.

Section 13-1-31 - Definition; architectural services.
Section 13-1-32 - Definition; blind trust.

Section 13-1-33 - Definition; brand-name specification.

Section 13-1-34 - Definition; brand-name or equal specification.

Section 13-1-35 - Definition; business.

Section 13-1-36 - Definition; catalogue price.
» Section 13-1-37 - Definition; central purchasing office.
= Section 13-1-38 - Definition; change order.



Section 13-1-38.1 - Definition; chief procurement officer.
Section 13-1-39 - Definition; confidential information.
Section 13-1-40 - Definition; construction.

Section 13-1-40.1 - Definition; construction management and construction manager.
Section 13-1-41 - Definition; contract.

Section 13-1-42 - Definition; contract modification.
Section 13-1-43 - Definition; contractor.

Section 13-1-44 - Definition; cooperative procurement.
Section 13-1-45 - Definition; cost analysis.

Section 13-1-46 - Definition; cost data.

Section 13-1-47 - Definition; cost reimbursement contract.
Section 13-1-48 - Repealed.

Section 13-1-49 - Definition; data.

Section 13-1-50 - Definition; definite quantity contract.
Section 13-1-51 - Definition; designee.

Section 13-1-52 - Definition; determination.

Section 13-1-53 - Definition; direct or indirect participation.
Section 13-1-53.1 - Definition; electronic.

Section 13-1-54 - Definition; employee.

Section 13-1-55 - Definition; engineering services.

Section 13-1-56 - Definition; external procurement unit.
Section 13-1-56.1 - Recompiled.

Section 13-1-57 - Definition; financial interest.

Section 13-1-58 - Definition; firm fixed price contract.
Section 13-1-59 - Definition; gratuity.

Section 13-1-60 - Definition; heavy road equipment.
Section 13-1-61 - Definition; highway reconstruction.
Section 13-1-62 - Definition; immediate family.

Section 13-1-63 - Definition; indefinite quantity contract.
Section 13-1-64 - Definition; invitation for bids.

Section 13-1-65 - Definition; surveying services.

Section 13-1-66 - Definition; landscape architectural services.
Section 13-1-66.1 - Definition; local public works project.
Section 13-1-67 - Definition; local public body.

Section 13-1-68 - Definition; multi-term contract.

Section 13-1-69 - Definition; multiple source award.
Section 13-1-70 - Definition; notice of invitation for bids.



Section 13-1-70.1 - Definition; person.

Section 13-1-71 - Definition; price agreement.

Section 13-1-72 - Definition; price analysis.

Section 13-1-73 - Definition; pricing data.
Section 13-1-74 - Definition; procurement.

Section 13-1-75 - Definition; procurement officer.

Section 13-1-76 - Definition; professional services.
Section 13-1-77 - Definition; purchase order.
Section 13-1-78 - Definition; purchase request.
Section 13-1-79 - Definition; qualified products list.
Section 13-1-80 - Definition; regulation.

Section 13-1-81 - Definition; request for proposals.
Section 13-1-82 - Definition; responsible bidder.
Section 13-1-83 - Definition; responsible offeror.

» Section 13-1-84 - Definition; responsive bid.

» Section 13-1-85 - Definition; responsive offer.
= Section 13-1-86 - Definition; secretary.
Section 13-1-86.1 - Duty to promulgate rules.
Section 13-1-87 - Definition; services.

Section 13-1-88 - Definition; small business.
= Section 13-1-89 - Definition; specification.

= Section 13-1-90 - Definition; state agency.

= Section 13-1-91 - Definition; state public works project.

» Section 13-1-92 - Definition; state purchasing agent.

» Section 13-1-93 - Definition; tangible personal property.

= Section 13-1-94 - Definition; using agency.

= Section 13-1-95 - Purchasing division; creation; director is state purchasing agent;
appointment; duties.

Section 13-1-95.1 - Electronic transmissions.

Section 13-1-95.2 - Chief procurement officers; reporting requirement; training;
certification.

Section 13-1-95.3 - State agency; reporting required; in-state and out-of-state
contracts.

Section 13-1-96 - Delegation of authority by the state purchasing agent.
Section 13-1-97 - Centralization of procurement authority.
Section 13-1-97.1 - Repealed.

Section 13-1-97.2 - Competitive sealed bids and proposals; record maintenance.



Section 13-1-98 - Exemptions from the Procurement Code.

Section 13-1-98.1 - Hospital and health care exemption.

Section 13-1-98.2 - Additional exemptions from the Procurement Code.

Section 13-1-99 - Excluded from central purchasing through the state purchasing
agent.

Section 13-1-100 - Construction contracts; central purchasing office.

Section 13-1-100.1 - Construction contracts; construction management services.
Section 13-1-101 - Repealed.

Section 13-1-102 - Competitive sealed bids required.

Section 13-1-103 - Invitation for bids.

Section 13-1-104 - Competitive sealed bids; public notice.

Section 13-1-105 - Competitive sealed bids; receipt and acceptance of bids.
Section 13-1-106 - Competitive sealed bids; correction or withdrawal of bids.
Section 13-1-107 - Competitive sealed bids; bid opening.

Section 13-1-108 - Competitive sealed bids; award.

Section 13-1-108.1 - Recompiled.

Section 13-1-109 - Competitive sealed bids; multi-step sealed bidding.

Section 13-1-110 - Competitive sealed bids; identical bids.

Section 13-1-111 - Competitive sealed proposals; conditions for use.

Section 13-1-112 - Competitive sealed proposals; request for proposals.

Section 13-1-113 - Competitive sealed proposals; public notice.

Section 13-1-114 - Competitive sealed proposals; evaluation factors.

Section 13-1-115 - Competitive sealed proposals; negotiations.

Section 13-1-116 - Competitive sealed proposals; disclosure; record.

Section 13-1-117 - Competitive sealed proposals; award.

Section 13-1-117.1 - Procurement of professional services; local public bodies;
legislative branch; selection and award.

Section 13-1-117.2 - Procurement of professional services; local public bodies;
professional technical advisory assistance.

Section 13-1-117.3 - Contracts for the design and installation of measures for the
conservation of natural resources.

Section 13-1-118 - Competitive sealed proposals; professional services contracts;
contract review.

Section 13-1-119 - Competitive sealed qualifications-based proposals; architects;
engineers; landscape architects; surveyors; additional requirements.

Section 13-1-119.1 - Public works project delivery system; design and build projects
authorized.



Section 13-1-119.2 - Design and build procurement for certain transportation projects.
Section 13-1-120 - Competitive sealed qualifications-based proposals; architects;
engineers; landscape architects; surveyors; selection process.

Section 13-1-121 - Competitive sealed qualifications-based proposals; architects;
engineers; landscape architects; surveyors; selection committee; state public works
projects.

Section 13-1-122 - Competitive sealed qualifications-based proposals; award of
architect, engineering, landscape architect and surveying contracts.

Section 13-1-123 - Architectural, engineering, landscape architectural and surveying
contracts.

Section 13-1-124 - Architect rate schedule.

Section 13-1-124.1 - Short title.

Section 13-1-124.2 - Applicability.

Section 13-1-124.3 - Definitions.

Section 13-1-124.4 - Construction manager at risk delivery method authorized;
multiphase selection procedure.

Section 13-1-124.5 - Responsibilities of construction manager at risk following award
of project.

Section 13-1-125 - Small purchases.

Section 13-1-126 - Sole source procurement.

Section 13-1-126.1 - Sole source contracts; notice; protest.

Section 13-1-127 - Emergency procurement; required conditions; limitations; notice.
Section 13-1-128 - Sole source and emergency procurements; publication of award to
agency web site and sunshine portal; content and submission of record.

Section 13-1-129 - Procurement under existing contracts.

Section 13-1-130 - Purchases; antipoverty program business.

Section 13-1-131 - Rejection or cancellation of bids or requests for proposals;
negotiations.

Section 13-1-132 - Irregularities in bids or proposals.

Section 13-1-133 - Responsibility of bidders and offerors.

Section 13-1-134 - Prequalification of bidders.

Section 13-1-135 - Cooperative procurement authorized.

Section 13-1-135.1 - Recycled content goods; cooperative procurement.

Section 13-1-136 - Cooperative procurement; reports required.

Section 13-1-137 - Sale, acquisition or use of property by a state agency or a local
public body.

Section 13-1-138 - Cost or pricing data required.



Section 13-1-138.1 - Specification of certain components; separate pricing required.
Section 13-1-138.2 - School construction projects; separate pricing required in certain
circumstances.

Section 13-1-139 - Cost or pricing data not required.

Section 13-1-140 - Cost or pricing data; change orders or contract modifications.
Section 13-1-141 - Cost or pricing data; change orders; contract modifications;
exceptions.

Section 13-1-142 - Cost or pricing data; certification required.

Section 13-1-143 - Cost or pricing data; price adjustment provision required.

Section 13-1-144 - Cost or price analysis.

Section 13-1-145 - Cost principles; regulations.

Section 13-1-146 - Requirement for bid security.

Section 13-1-146.1 - Directed suretyship prohibited; penalty.

Section 13-1-147 - Bid security; rejection of bids.

Section 13-1-148 - Bid and performance bonds; additional requirements.

Section 13-1-148.1 - Bonding of subcontractors.

Section 13-1-149 - Types of contracts.

Section 13-1-150 - Multi-term contracts; specified period.

Section 13-1-151 - Multi-term contracts; determination prior to use.

Section 13-1-152 - Multi-term contracts; cancellation due to unavailability of funds.
Section 13-1-152.1 - Water storage tank service contracts.

Section 13-1-153 - Multiple source award; limitations on use.

Section 13-1-154 - Multiple source award; determination required.

Section 13-1-154.1 - Multiple source contracts; architectural and engineering services
contracts; indefinite quantity construction contracts.

Section 13-1-155 - Procurement of used items; appraisal required; county road
equipment exception for auctions.

Section 13-1-156 - Trade or exchange of used items; appraisal required.

Section 13-1-156.1 - Trade, exchange or disposal of tangible personal property; state-
owned railroad.

Section 13-1-157 - Receipt; inspection; acceptance or rejection of deliveries.

Section 13-1-158 - Payments for purchases.

Section 13-1-159 - Right to inspect plant.

Section 13-1-160 - Audit of cost or pricing data.

Section 13-1-161 - Contract audit.

Section 13-1-162 - State procurement standards and specifications committee; terms;
staff.



Section 13-1-163 - Committee powers and duties; special committees; annual report.

Section 13-1-164 - Specifications; maximum practicable competition.

Section 13-1-165 - Brand-name specification; use.

Section 13-1-166 - Brand-name specification; competition.

Section 13-1-167 - Brand-name or equal specification; required characteristics.

Section 13-1-168 - Brand-name or equal specification; required language.

Section 13-1-169 - Purchase request; specifications; purchase orders.

Section 13-1-170 - Uniform contract clauses.

Section 13-1-171 - Price adjustments.
Section 13-1-172 - Right to protest.

Section 13-1-173 - Procurements after protest.
Section 13-1-174 - Authority to resolve protests.
Section 13-1-175 - Protest; determination.

Section 13-1-176 - Protest; notice of determination.
Section 13-1-177 - Authority to suspend or debar.

Section 13-1-178 - Causes for debarment or suspension; time limit.

Section 13-1-179 - Debarment or suspension; determination.

Section 13-1-180 - Debarment or suspension; notice of determination.

Section 13-1-180.1 - Continuation of current contracts; restrictions on subcontracting.

Section 13-1-181 - Remedies prior to execution of contract.

Section 13-1-182 - Ratification or termination after execution of contract.

Section 13-1-183 - Judicial review.

Section 13-1-184 - Assistance to small business; policy.

Section 13-1-185 - Assistance to small business; duties of the state purchasing agent.
Section 13-1-186 - Assistance to small business; bid bonds; reduction.
Section 13-1-187 - Small business; report to the legislature.

Section 13-1-188 - Public acquisition of American-made motor vehicles required.

Section 13-1-189 - Procurements pursuant to the Corrections Industries Act.
Section 13-1-190 - Unlawful employee participation prohibited.
Section 13-1-191 - Bribes; gratuities and kickbacks; contract reference required.

Section 13-1-191.1 - Campaign contribution disclosure and prohibition.
Section 13-1-192 - Contingent fees prohibited.

= Section 13-1-193 - Contemporaneous employment prohibited.

= Section 13-1-194 - Waivers from contemporaneous employment and unlawful
employee participation permitted.

= Section 13-1-195 - Use of confidential information prohibited.

» Section 13-1-196 - Civil penalty.



Section 13-1-196.1 - State ethics commission jurisdiction.

Section 13-1-197 - Recovery of value transferred or received; additional civil penalty.
Section 13-1-198 - Kickbacks; additional civil penalty.
Section 13-1-199 - Penalties.

Disclaimer: These codes may not be the most recent version. New Mexico may have more current or
accurate information. We make no warranties or guarantees about the accuracy, completeness, or

adequacy of the information contained on this site or the information linked to on the state site. Please
check official sources.

This site is protected by reCAPTCHA and the Google Privacy Policy and Terms of Service apply.



JUSTIA

(Go to previous versions of this Article

"/

2021 New Mexico Statutes
Chapter 41 - Torts
Article 4 - Tort Claims

Section 41-4-1 - Short title.
Section 41-4-2 - Legislative declaration.
Section 41-4-3 - Definitions.

Section 41-4-4 - Granting immunity from tort liability; authorizing exceptions.

Section 41-4-5 - Liability; operation or maintenance of motor vehicles, aircraft and
watercraft.

» Section 41-4-6 - Liability; buildings, public parks, machinery, equipment and
furnishings.

Section 41-4-7 - Liability; airports.

Section 41-4-8 - Liability; public utilities.

Section 41-4-9 - Liability; medical facilities.

Section 41-4-10 - Liability; health care providers.
Section 41-4-11 - Liability; highways and streets.
Section 41-4-12 - Liability; law enforcement officers.

Section 41-4-13 - Exclusions from waiver of immunity; community ditches or
acequias; Sanitary Projects Act associations.
Section 41-4-14 - Defenses.

Section 41-4-15 - Statute of limitations.
Section 41-4-16 - Notice of claims.

Section 41-4-16.1 - Civil action; damages incurred while imprisoned; notice to victim.

Section 41-4-17 - Exclusiveness of remedy.

Section 41-4-18 - Jurisdiction; appeals; venue.
Section 41-4-19 - Maximum liability.



Section 41-4-20 - Coverage of risks; insurance.

Section 41-4-21 - Application of act.

Section 41-4-22 - Insurance fund.

Section 41-4-23 - Public liability fund created; purposes.

Section 41-4-24 - Consulting and claims adjusting contracts.

Section 41-4-25 - Public liability fund; municipal public liability fund; local public
body participation; educational entity participation.

= Section 41-4-26 - Home rule municipality tort claims ordinances; severability;
applicability.

= Section 41-4-27 - Home rule municipality; joint powers agreements; coverage.

» Section 41-4-28 - Coverage for liability subject to foreign jurisdiction's law.

= Section 41-4-29 - Governmental entities; health care students liability coverage;
authority to purchase.

= Section 41-4-30 - Liability coverage; certain community land grants.

Disclaimer: These codes may not be the most recent version. New Mexico may have more current or
accurate information. We make no warranties or guarantees about the accuracy, completeness, or
adequacy of the information contained on this site or the information linked to on the state site. Please
check official sources.

This site is protected by reCAPTCHA and the Google Privacy Policy and Terms of Service apply.



Page |13

strictly complies with the provisions contained above and the Road Superintendent will inspect
the work as it is ongoing to determine that the agreement is being fulfilled. No private party
shall perform any work on any County Maintained Road until a written agreement has been
completed as described above. However, if the Road Superintendent, or his representative
designated by the Union County BOCC, determines that an emergency situation exists
requiring immediate action, then the Road Superintendent may verbally authorize the work
under the terms and conditions set forth above in this section. A written agreement between the
private party and County Manager must then be prepared and fully executed within five (5)
days of the verbal authorization. All private parties warrant that any back fill material used
shall be in compliance with County standards and shall agree to repair and/or replace any
failing or defective back fill for one year.

Mowing of grass in right of way, pushing snow, etc. is not included as "work on County
Maintained Roads by private parties". The policies listed above are meant to keep destructive
acts from happening on County Maintained Roads. This is not meant to deter the general public
from good faith efforts to clear County Maintained Roads of weeds, snow, etc.

Donations of Privately Owned Materials. Nothing contained in this section of the Union
County Road Policy shall prohibit or in any way restrict the donation of road materials (caliche,
gravel, water, etc.) to the County when such donation is free of charge and involves no expense
to the County other than transporting the materials to the road site for use. Union County
specifically recognizes in this policy that the farmers and ranchers of Union County have
throughout the history of Union County provided materials to the County for use in
maintenance and construction of roads, often at no charge to the County. Such donations by
these citizens have proven to be an invaluable aid to the County in its attempts to construct and
maintain a viable road system; and is hereby specifically encouraged as a benefit to the citizens
of Union County in that it saves expenditures of funds and man hours.

As Union County currently uses caliche as its prime road building and maintenance material,
whenever possible, private citizens/landowners of Union County will be asked to provide
caliche for road projects within their generalized geographic area. Higher priority will be given
to road projects which have donated water and/or caliche (or other material) as this allows for
better resource utilization given the fixed amounts of County resources.

An agreement between the landowner and Union County will be required for all donated
materials and the Road Superintendent will work with the landowner and County Manager on
all required documentation.



Page |14

SECTION VIII: MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

Caliche, Pavement, Gravel, Culverts, Weed Control, Traffic Signs. The County may
caliche, pave, gravel, install culverts, install cattle guards, perform weed control and install
signs on any County Maintained Road or public right-of-way at its discretion. In addition, upon
citizen request, the County may perform any of the above on a County Maintained Road if it is
determined to be necessary and is in the best interest of the County. Any requested
improvements will be prioritized based on need and will be contingent upon available funding,
manpower, and equipment.

Road Signs and Maintenance. The placement of all traffic signs will be performed in
compliance with the Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD). Union
County has a responsibility for correcting unsafe county road and signage conditions within a
reasonable period of time after notification or identification of a hazard. When working or
traveling on County Maintained Roads, all Union County staff are expected to monitor county
road and signage conditions and immediately report any hazard or defect to the Road
Department.

Citizen Complaint Reports. Periodically citizens report hazardous road or signage conditions
on County Maintained Roads. Employees receiving a complaint are expected to immediately
forward the complaint to the Road Superintendent’s office or County Administration.

C=211] Iz-:"|u|"L;=H1'|.""\"- Y@ maintenance fi "i\"‘"‘:‘.i‘-"f.‘.;l.'i_i.|f.i ‘-‘a‘--!-.‘.l‘i.f




Page |15

SECTION IX: ATTACHMENTS



UNION COUNTY CATTLE GUARD APPLICATION/PERMIT

|, undersigned, do hereby make application to the Union County Road Department of Union County,

New Mexico, to place a cattle guard on Union County Road

Work will be done on Union County Road between

and

Description of location:

* Complete attached map form.

Cattle guard will be at location, ready for installation on or by

Applicant’'s Responsibilities:

1.
2.

The cattle guard specifications are attached to the application.

The applicant will purchase their own cattle guard and provide the material to install the cattle
guard; Union County does not sell/provide cattle guards or materials. All work in the County
Road to install a cattle guard shall be performed by Union County Road Department.

No person or entity shall be allowed to perform any cleaning/maintenance after installation

In the event the cattle guard needs cleaning/maintenance before the maintenance crew
returns, a request form for cleaning/maintenance must be completed and submitted. Union
County has fifteen (15) working days to complete the task.

An administration fee of $50.00 and an installation fee of $300.00 must accompany this
application.

Signature of Applicant

Applicant’'s Name Printed

Mailing Address

City, State, Zip

Contact Number

Said application was granted upon terms and conditions therein stated.

Road Superintendent



Draw a map (or attach) as well as provide additional description if
needed. Please indicate road name on map and show where work

will take place.




CULVERT APPLICATION/PERMIT

I, the undersigned, do hereby make application to the Union County Road Department, Union County

NM to place a culvert under or along Union County Road

Work will be done on Union County Road between and

Description of Location:

Person or persons who will own said culvert once installed

Culvert will be at location, ready for installation on or by

Applicant’s Responsibilities:

1.

2.
3.

That culvert pipe will be no smaller than 24 inches in diameter unless determined by Road
Superintendent that an 18 inch culvert can be used to obtain proper coverage.

The applicant will purchase their own culvert; Union County does not sell/provide them.

The applicant agrees to protect, indemnify, defend and hold Union County harmless, including
attorney fees, from any injury or damage caused to a third party or third parties by the
maintenance of said culvert thereof, or the lack of maintenance thereof.

Union County reserves the right to relocated, modify, alter, or reroute County Roadways, and
applicant shall be solely responsible for any and all costs or expenses necessary to relocate or
move applicant’s culvert.

The applicant is responsible for maintenance and cleaning of culverts, and all damages to
culverts need to be repaired by applicant.

An administrative fee of $50.00 and install fee of $150.00 must accompany this application.

Signature of Applicant

Applicant’s Name Printed
Mailing Address
City, State, Zip

Contact Number

Said application was granted upon terms and conditions therein stated.

Road Superintendent



PERMIT NO.

This permit is granted on this day of , 20 by Union County, New Mexico, (County) and
, (Permittee),
Address:

This permit is for the sole purpose of allowing Permittee to lay (pipe or cable) for the purpose of

across a certain designated County Road lying, situated and being in the County of Union, State of New Mexico,
more particularly described as follows:
LEGAL DESCRIPTION

This permit is subject to the following provisions:

1. a.) Permittee will dig a trench across the above-described County Road approximately feet deep.
b.)Pipe and/or cable made of
¢.) Pipe and/or cable shall be inches in diameter and of the type Schedule .

2. Permittee will then fill and compact the trench to restore the road to an even level suitable for public traffic.
Restoration of the road shall be subject to the inspection and approval of the County Road Supervisor.

3. Permittee shall install visible, identifiable markers on site, indicating the location of the pipe.

4. Permittee is to perform the construction is such a way as to provide adequate fill on both ends of the road
and shall construct any structure that may be necessary or desirable in connection therewith.

5. All excavation and construction performed under this permit shall be consistent with all laws, rules and
regulations of the State of New Mexico and of the County.

6. In the event that the County desires to improve the above-described County Road, the County reserves the
right to request from the Permittee, if necessary to remove and/or relocate in order to make such improvements.
The County will give Permittee notice in advance of making such improvements.

7. Permittee will hold harmless Union County for any damage to third parties resulting from the excavation
of fill.

8 Permittee shall erect sufficient warning barricades and signs to alert all traffic of the hazard during
construction and restoration.

9. At least twenty-four (24) hour notice shall be provided to the Union County Road Department Supervisor
of the commencement and completion of any construction.

Witness our hands and seals this day of , 20

SEAL
COUNTY OF UNION, NEW MEXICO

ATTEST

ROAD SUPERINTENDENT

COUNTY MANAGER

COUNTY CLERK



DRIVEWAY PERMIT

APPLICATION FOR PERMIT TO CONSTRUCT DRIVEWAY ON PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY

Date: Permit No:

APPLICATION is hereby made by
for permission to construct driveway at the following described location:

Section , Township , Range

Roadway Name

Work will commence on or about , 20 and be completed on or about
, 20

Gate, cattle guard, culvert, and/or fence will be required which applicant agrees to furnish and
hereafter maintain in good repair and closed to livestock. If this permit is granted, the undersigned
applicant agrees to comply with all conditions, restrictions, and regulations of the Union County Board
of Commissioners. Administrative fee of $50.00 must accompany this application.

By:

Applicant's Name:

Phone Number:
Address:

Approved:

Road Superintendent



Application and Hold Harmless Agreement

l/we, the undersigned, as the legal owner(s) of the below described real property, do hereby request
that the Board of County Commissioners of Union County and/or its designee and authorize Union
County personnel and equipment from the Union County road Department to enter upon my/our
below described real property for the purpose of performing the following work at said location:

Physical description of property, including road and/or intersection where work is to be performed:

Description of work to be completed:

In consideration of Union County and/or Union County personnel/equipment providing the above
described services, l/we knowingly and voluntarily waive and release Union County, its employees,
personnel and equipment, from any and all current and/or claims, demands, causes of action, claims
for relief, or claims for compensation, which arise out of or result from Union County equipment and
personnel coming onto the land and/or performing any work thereon, regardless of the nature of the
claim or damage, and regardless of the type, nature, reason or basis for any and all said claims,
whether known or unknown, anticipated or unanticipated, intended or unintended.

I/we further agree to release and hold Union County and any of its employees/personnel/equipment
harmless from any and all damages, claims, causes or action, claims for reimbursement or repairs,
which result from or are the result of Union County, or any of Union County’s personnel, or any Union
County equipment coming on to the property and/or any work, action, conduct, transaction or any
non-action by Union County, any of its employees and/or equipment.

Undersigned stipulate and acknowledge that they have freely and voluntarily requested Union County
to perform the above referenced work without any threats or coercion and as their free and voluntary
act.

Undersigned stipulate and agree that this document is for the benefit of Union County, its agents,
employees, contractors and assigns. '

Signature of Owner Signature of Owner
Printed Name of Owner Printed Name of Owner
Address, City, State, Zip Address, City, State, Zip

Phone Number Phone Number



The above application was presented for consideration by the Union County Commission of Union
County, New Mexico this day of , 20 . Said application was
granted upon the terms and conditions therein stated.

Board of Union County Commissioners

Chair

Member

Member

Road Superintendent

ATTEST:

County Clerk
Date:

Reference:
Date and description of work performed and by whom




WATER PURCHASE AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into this day of , 20 by and
between Union County a New Mexico governmental entity, hereinafter referred to as “County”, and
. hereinafter referred to as “Seller”, whose address is

WHEREAS, County has a need, from time to time, to purchase and acquire water for the
purpose of various road work or road projects in Union County; and,

WHEREAS, Seller is the owner of certain water/water rights that it can sell to County for the
limited and specific purpose of work on said county road projects; and, .

WHEREAS, the parties have entered into this agreement for the purpose of documenting the
agreement they have reached.

IT IS THEREFORE MUTUALLY AGREED AND CONTRACTED TO BY THE PARTIES, and,
for valuable consideration, as evidenced by their signatures hereto, the parties stipulate, agree and
contract as follows:

1. Seller shall sell, assign and transfer up to gallons of water to County for
purposes of use on county road project in Union County, New Mexico.

2. By its signature hereto, Buyer acknowledges, stipulates and represents to County that it is
the sole owner of the water that is subject to this agreement and that there are no liens or
other encumbrances against the water and the payments for the sale of water under the
Agreement are to be made directly to Seller.

3. County shall pay to Seller the sum of $ per 1,000 gallons of water purchased
under this Agreement, which includes any and all gross receipts tax. Seller agrees to
accept County’s meter reading for purposes of determination of the number of gallons
purchased by County. County agrees to pay Seller, and Seller agrees to accept payment
for said water at such time as County completes the road project for which said water is
being purchased for. County Shall provide Seller with a detailed statement showing the
number of gallons of water purchased at the above-stipulated and agreed to rate, and
provide a check for payment in full of the same.

4. The location where County is to obtain the water is described as:

5. Seller hereby consents, agrees, and allows County vehicles, including but not limited to
water trucks, access across said property to the above-described location, seven days a
week, twenty-for hours a day, if necessary, for the purpose of obtaining water and filling
water trucks with the water necessary for the county road project.

6. If there are any cattle or livestock on the property or if there are any gates that need to be
opened or closed by County, or any other concerns that Seller has with regard to County’s
access for purposes of obtaining water, those are:

7. County shall not be liable to Seller for normal wear and tear resulting from County’s access
to and from the property for purposes of obtaining water and implementing the terms of this
agreement.

8. Contact persons with regard to this Agreement, the terms and conditions and
implementation hereof is as follows:



Union County: Road Superintendent
Union County
25 Lake Hwy.
Clayton NM 88415

Seller:
Phone number:
Email:
Unless sooner terminated, this Agreement shall automatically expire on the day
of , 20
Curry County: Seller:
By: By:

Its: Its:




Union County
RESOLUTION #2024-31

PARTICIPATION IN CAPITAL OUTLAY PROGRAM ADMINISTERED
BY NEW MEXICO DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

WHEREAS, Union County and the New Mexico Department of Transportation enter into a
Cooperative Agreement,

WHEREAS, the total cost of the project will be $250,000 to be funded by the parties hereto as
follows:

a. New Mexico Department of Transportation’s share shall be 100% or $250,000
and
b. Union County’s proportional matching share shall be 0% or $0.00

TOTAL PROJECT COST IS $250,000.

Union County shall pay all costs, which exceed the total amount of 250,000.

Now therefore, be it resolved in official session that Union County determines, resolves, and
orders as follows:

That the project for this Cooperative agreement is adopted and has a priority standing.

The agreement terminates on June 30, 2027 (for Laws of 2023) and Union County incorporates all
the agreements, covenants, and understandings between the parties hereto concerning the subject matter
hereof, and all such covenants, agreements and understandings have been merged into the written
agreement.

NOW therefore, be it resolved by Union County to enter into Cooperative Agreement Control
Number C4233366 with the New Mexico Department of Transportation for Capital Outlay (Laws of 2023)
to (Plan, design and construct roads and road improvements in Union County, including repaving and
drainage within the control of Union County in Clayton, Union County, New Mexico.

Passed, adopted, and effective this 8% day of February 2024, by the Board of County
Commissioners of Union County.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF UNION
COUNTY, NEW MEXICO

Clayton Kiesling, Chairman

Brenda Green, County Clerk

W. Carr Vincent, Member

Lloyd Miller, Member



Union County

Clayton Kiesling PO Box 430 Brandy Thompson
Chair Clayton, NM 88415 County Manager
W. Carr Vincent (575)374-8896

Member (575)374-2763 Fax Stephen C. Ross
Lloyd “Red” Miller WWW.UNIionnim. us County Attorney
Member

Resolution #2024-32
2024 Road Audit

We, the Board of Commissioners, County of Union, New Mexico do hereby certify to the best

of our knowledge that Union County has 1,177.59 miles of county-maintained roads.

Passed, adopted and approved, this 8th day of February, 2024, at the regularly scheduled
meeting of the County of Union Board of Commissioners.

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS - UNION COUNTY

Clayton Kiesling, Chairman

W. Carr Vincent, Member

Lloyd Miller, Member
ATTEST

Brenda Green, County Clerk



paugjuBL [8m papelg

Jied pepelg
PpaulBjUIBW [[3Mm papelg
paulejuiel |[em papelg
poulBlUBW ||aM papelg
paulejuiell |[9m papelg
PaUlElUiEW [joMm pape(g

Jled papejg
paulejuleW [[om papelg
paulejuleW (@M pspelg
paulelUiRW |[oM papelg
paulejulew [|am papelg
paulsjulewl [[am pape|g
paulglUiBW [[oMm pape|d
paulelUiBW j[3M pape|g
paulejuiEL jjam papelg
pauigjUIBW [[8m papejg
paulejulew |[|am papelg
paulBjuIBLL ||SM papelgd
paulejuieul {[3m papelg
psaulejuiRW |[8M pape|g
paulgjuiew jjam papelg
paulBjuiRL [[om papejg

paulEjuIBLU ||am papelg
paueluiEi I8
paulBluRIN JIPA
paulejueLl |[@m papelg
[aM papelg
|em papelg
paulejuiell [jam papelg
paulziuleW j[am papelg
pauleluleW [[am papelg
peurBjUiBW |[aM pepeld
paulejuieW ||om papelg
paulBjUiBW [[oM papelg
pauiBjUBW ||[oM papelg
paulgjuiel [jam papeig
pauigjuiell [jam pape|g
Jied papejg
poulBUBLU |[3M p3pEd
paulejulELL []aMm papelg
paulejulew ||om pape|g
paulgjUiBW |[2M pBpelg
paulejuieul j[am papelg
paulgjulBL |[am pape|g
paulBjulBW |[3M papelg
paulejuleLL {[oM pape|g
paulejuieLl oM pape(g
Jied papeig
paulBjuBW [[om pape|d
paUlBjUIBLL [[@M pope(g

paulEjuIBW
pauleLiBW

paulBjUBL ||9M papelg
pauieuiew |jom pape|g
paulgjuieW [[2Mm papelg
paulejuiew [[om pape|g

sjuswiwe

©

M T T LT T TSN NTEOTETOOOTOTOOTOLTOFTOFTETE T ETOTETOOTEOTOTO0OFT OSSO
)

soBUNg
Rempeoy

44
8t
[44
[44
[44
[44
13
8l
[44
8l
9l
8
9l
0C
o4
13
1%
8l
[44
f44
214
44
[44
[44

[44
0Z
A
144
1%
(4
<18
81
[44
8l
44
9l
9l
0z
0c
0C
0z
9l
8l
8L
0g
44
9l
0z
0C
0C
4
oc
0e

UIPIM PY

74
0z0
08'L
1gie
1870}
pA-u%
erAlY]
24"
62T
02
110
[A°n3
290
L6°G
GL'e
100
[
GE0
oL'oL
oech
§6'6
L
0e0
9ee
Lo
ol
S9°0L
ee’l
L0C
€Tl
00’y
8¥'9
80
6¥'0
190
00'C
gzel
85°L
¥s'l
lee
{2413
vl
¢Lo
€50
990
S0
809
€0’
80C
Loy
290
207}
880
[34°]
86°}

SN B

3Nol Jo pua 0} S

8Jn0J jo pua Ol N

aur ajels sexa) 0} 3

8jn0J jJo pus O} N

8Jn0J Jo pud 0} SaPIS Yjog S pue N
ajnol JO pus 0} AA

QIN0J JO PUB O} S

8jnoJ Jo pus o1 3

8)noJ Jo pus 0} 38

BIN0J JOPUB O} IW L M\ PUB W L N
8jnouJ jo pus 0} 3N

ajnc. Jo pus 0} 3

3JnoJ jo pus o} N

ajnol jo pus o} N

UoN09sIajUl Py BUO| 0} W G2'} JIW Z S UsYL
N ‘Belod WA ruyy spug

BJN0I JO PUS 01 S

8jnod Jo pus o} N

pY UOSISPUY O} M\ AMH BUIMIS 0L 3
9jnos Jo pus 0f

Py Asuieam 0} N/3
uonoasialul Py ASIIA OF M W |
9G¥ HS O SIMIN

9G¥ HS OF S/M/IN

8jnoJ Jo pus 0} 3

uoossIBiul Py Jleqdwed o) N
uonoesiaul Py soBajieD o} N/M
N0l Jo pUs O} N

py ebuusH jo uoloesisiul o} N
2Jn01 JO pUs 0} MS

PY BUOS UM oP OL

jnoJ JO pus 0} §

9JnoJ Jo pus 01§

9Jnol Jo pus 0} S

sjnoljo pus o} §
snosjopusciJiw g

py uojbuluusd 01 §

ajnoJ Jo pua o} N

@)nou Jo pus 0} N

ajnol Jo pus o} §

0/E WS o

pY e10S 0} N

8JnoJ Jo pus o} N

AN ‘uspAeH nuyl spu3

aJnod Jo pua 0} MS

3Inol Jo pua o} N

9DOUBUBJUIEW AJUNOD JO pUS O]
8IN0J JO PUS O} W | N IW Z M
W Z MN

PY ¥BID OF N

20V ¥SPro} 3

8Jn0J JO pUd 0} §

8JN0J JO pua o} J

0/E US04 M

90V ¥S O} N

INIINY3L ONIANT
0L

M 1W 2 201 ¥S/PY 1960 1o woid

J W | pY osawoy/py meox or woiq

20v ¥S UO S 1W §'g UoHe|D Wold

MS/M/N/M UBU} 90F ¥S UO N I | BOBUSS Wiol]
31w ¢ - py sBBog/zoy WS jor wold

N W G°L 20¥ ¥S/Z0} HS or woid

MBIAUIBId UO F W | Z0¥ HS/29§ ¥S 1f Wold

S IW G/'L 0¥ ¥S/Ty HS Ior wold

pY ABMO UO S 1W | LB} F W g PY ASSdWBD/ZOY MS 1O
ZLP/9G SN U0 I W | SUOISPe|D Woly

0/E ¥S UO W 0Z N Uoike|D woiy

PY SUOISpBID UO S W | dUojspe| Woid

Py 9bpiy Uo W G| "xodde sauloly saQ wold

1 05 S PUB M PY Weyde|5/zes WS 1or wold
pY 8UO| UO 1w OF'} T PUB IW € S UBY) OZ IS PUE BUlT 03 BulpJeH jor wold
NN ‘eJo@ N Ut uiBag

py UOSHEGON/Z07 HS 101 Wold

$9//8 SN U0 3S W g UoIKED Wold

M/3 Uiog W § N Z0¥ ¥S/Lek HS 1or ol

M PY 01BAOT/Z95 HS 1 Wold

Py uimi| uo N Wi uay} BS38\ pueg U0 3 1W | 8[jiAuaID woi4
3 IW €L Zhp/9G SN/ESY ¥S 1or Wold

9G¥ YS UO IW G°G BUITIS YO Wiold

95 Y¥S UO IW §°G BUITIS YO Woid

1w G'0 N §Z€ ¥S Uo uinde) woid

Py snBuy Uo AA 1W | BOSUSS W01

PY SBUOl 0} IW | N BHOS Woi4

¥9/L8 SN UO M IW & SBUIOW S3(] Wold

MW 9 ZLH/95 SN uoKke|D wold

3S W € $9//8 SN UOIKE(D Woid

N UBY} AA USL} S SBUO/BYOS Jof WOl

M 1W 0Z 9% ¥S 9l 1S HO Wold

Asuoy UC I JW Z S IW g SUOISPE|D Wold

W | 312 ¥S/Z0P ¥Sor

Py ABUO] UO AR W | Z0¥ ¥S S It 6 UOHKE(D Wold
W Z S Py Supiiad 0} 3 1w | UBpas Wod4

ZL¥ WS/9E SN UO M W | uolkeld wold

ZLb ¥S/9G SN U A 1w Z UoKE|D Wold

Ly ¥S/Z0Y ¥S I

M W Z suojspe|D wol4g

M USBUI N IW g} BOBUSS wou4

M UBL} EGH/HS UO S IW G'ZL BJIIAUSID WOl

Py BUOS U0 M 1L 61 €5 ¥S S W 0} SIIIAUSID WOl
AN ‘uspAeH 1e suibag

M IW L0" $9//8 SN SBUIOW $3Q WOl

1W €°Z ZLP/9G SN U0 I UOIAR|D WOt

Py @ 9SI0H O} M I 6 601 ¥S/Z0Y HS o8
B09USS Wol4

W G M §9 YS/Z0p S 1or Wold

W L M Py Weydelo/zoy ¥S jor wold

[00Y2S pEISIWLY Woi4

M W G°¢ SBUION s8] Wol4

Q0¥ ¥S UO S W Z BOBUSS WOLH

S UBY} 0L WS 3 I € PY |foqdwied woid

3 IW € 90F HS/BOBUIS JOr ol

ININY3L ONINNIOZE
‘NO¥d

Py 3jued
Py og ued
pY Aesdwed
Py ileqduen
Py slied

Py ues

Py Wng

Py usng

pY smoung
Py piejing
Py ¥ong

py uelug

py umoig

pY Jepmoig
Py g

pY 008

Py ziog

py Jebuljog
py sBbog
Py Juoyenig
py deo puig
Py oer yoelg
159/ Py BSSN foelg
1se3 py BsaN Yoe|g
Py uosig

Py [emplig
Py aiyig

Py wouusg
Py elleg

Py lieg

Py Hayoleg
Py [Byoeg
Py piesg

pY Joweag
Py seieg

Py peyueg
py Asuieg
Py f[2qeg
Py piteg

Py epeg

Py opudY
Py Aeiyory
pYy ofiuuy

pY BUANY

Py B1eInyaIy
Py Aajfen ayoedy
py sBuuds adojsjuy
py snbuy

py uybuy

pY uosIspuy
Py pesiuy
Py pepsiwy
py adojy

pY sowely
Py 2qopy

ZWVYN 3LNoA




pauieluey [|om papelg
J1ed pepelg

Jied pspelg
paulBjuie |[om papelg
paulejuIB |lem papelg
Jled4 papelg
paulelUR ||9M papelg
Jied pspelg

Jleq papelg

Jied pspelg
pauejue [|om papeig
pauiejuily [|am papelg
paulgjuIB |[am papelg
Jied papeig
paulBjulely [jem papeig
pauueiN

Jied pape|g

die4 pepelg
pauUIBUIBI [[M papelg
218D P07
paulgluiB [j9M papeld
Jied pepelg
pauieluig|y j|am papelg
pauiRiUiBel |[Bm pape|g
Jled papelg

Jied pspe|g

Jied pepelg
pauiejuie [19m pspelg
Jied pspelg
paulelulewW [om papelgd
paulBjUIB ||oMm papelg
Jieq pspelg

dled papeig
PaUIBJUR [[8M pape|g
lied papelg

died papelg

Jted pepe|g

e papeig
PaUIBJUIBI []9M papeig
died

pauIBjUIB [[M Pape|g
paulelulely jjam pspelg
paulgjuiey [jam papejg
Jie4 papejg
pauejuiey [[am pepelg
paulgiuig|y j|om papelg
paulBluIBIA ||om papelg
paulBjUBI |[2Mm papelg
paulejuiel jom papeig

paulBlLieW ([3M PapeId
paulBIUIBW {[2M papeld
JUBU [[9M PapElg
felufeul Jjom papeig

pauiejuiein
Juew ([am papeig
pauleluEW [|laM Papelg
paulEujeW |[am papelg

~
]

<
)

® o

< <
T ST OOFTLTTETOMOOOOOOOOTOOOO0FTETOOTETOOOETOOTIO0O0O0OS 000

yBe

©

I ¢+ ™ ™

[44
13
8l
8l
9ol
9l
13
81
0C
91
8l
(014
(74

44
[44
144
24
44
[44
0e
[44
8l
814
0T
44
44

oLe
0§°0
ve'g
61'9
00'}
oLl
Loe
ok
€0k
er'e
ov'LT
34
00°G
7
8L°0
00°%
161
850
434
oL’k
19T
1443
g0
66°0
002
6yl
10z
871
8€0
802
Ll
124"
66°0
S04
880
og'e
1870
980
¥Z'6
o
[ x4
G8'0
86'%
20
920
66’V
1443
66'G
€L0
§6'6
vLs
eebl
850
i
850
134°
oyl

W AunoD Jo pus o} p
8jned Jo pua o} p/S
py Aeuseg o} MWN
SoUBUEBJUIEBIA AUNOD JO PUB O} §

uoyoesiajul py l[8qdwe o N/3

PEOJ JO PUS O} W L)L N Usyl

PY WOPSIM 01 S

3jnou Jo pus o} N

3JN0J Jo pus 0} N

BIN0J JO pUB 0] AAS

$9//8 SN ©1 N uay \p doo

3jnoi Jo pus 0} S

Py UOSIOPUY 0} ZOP WS Buissoi [ ¥ 3 1wl | N usyL
douBUBUERIN AIUNOD JO Pud puk aulT Aunod BuipseH o} MS
3jnos jo pus 0} §

2N0J JO pPUS O} A

pY JouRy 0} §

3JN0J Jo pus 0} M

|ynol Jo pus o} N

3Jno JO PUS O} M\

2jnod jo pua o} AN

91n0J JO pua o} M/N

2)N0J JO PUS O} M

N0l jo pus o} N

8jnol jo pue 0} 3

3Jnol Jo pua 0} §

)n0J Jo puUs 0} §

B8N0l JO pus 0} IS UBY}

8Jnol JO pus 0} MS

ajnol jo pus o} N

PY BUOS O} YN W L

8)nos Jo pus o0} 3

ajnoJ Jo pus o} N

ajnoJ Jo pus 0} J/S usu}

8Jnol JO pus o} A\

ajnol jo pue o} N
uoioasIBIUL PY ASIIM O} /S UsyL
3JNo0J JO pus 0} S

py uoysnig o} S

2Jnol1 JO puUs 0} S

2Jno1 Jo pua 0} 3

py supidwoy) 0}

py 008UdEd 0} M UBUY N

3)nod Jo pus 0} N

9)JN0J JO PUB 0} M

pY uosiepuy 0} 3

8nol Jo pus 0} §

@jn0J JO pPUS 0} §

@)Jnol Jo pus 0} §

uolasIalul pY OPUSIUY 0} N/ZIN
STEUS OB M/N

AMH SBWOU] 0} S PUB AA UBY} AMH SBLUOYL SSOI0 M
3JN0J JO PUS O} A

3)noJ JO pUs 0} §

3jNnoJ jJo pue 0} AA

UOOasIBIUI PY SjuoWEsEd 0} IS
uoyoasiaul py eBuleH 0} 3

BPULISD UO N IW g suojspe|s) wol4

M W 9 Z0% HS/9GH HS r Wold

N 1W ¢ Py $9ABC/PY JUOHBNIE JO 127 Wold

S PY BUOISPEID/YS SN 1 Wl

N W g py eS|\ pues/py Uimi| Jor Wwoig

W 020 N AMH auI BWOUEPIO/PY SSIMOU JO 1o Wold
M LW € ZOE ¥S/Z0F YS 10 Wosd

M W 9 Py ljeqdweD/o.€ ¥S o wold

py degysul] Auno Buipel Jo 1or wold

S IW €] PY SIUOWBSBA/ZLY/9G SN O Wold

€51 ¥S UO S G0 BIIIAULID Wold

1w | py Ae|[eA BOBUSS/L LY HS 1O WOl

py sBBog uo 1w Z J Z0Y ¥S UO S 1 ¥ UOIABID Wiol]
Py BUO| UO IW € § PY BUOI/OZY ¥S 1Or

ZLP/95 SN U0 M 1W G UoIAED Wl

1wz S py Jo|Buripy/py Apsuusy jor wold

ZLP/9G SN/BUIBIEIS BWOUENO JOf Wol4

S 1w g py uojbuiuuad Zi/9g SN 1or Wl

3 1W Z ZLy/9G SN Lo UolAe|D wioly

20F U0 S IW | LZF US/ZOY WS oI wold

M W Z Py UOSHBg0Y/Z0Y YS 191 Woid

LGS ¥S Uo IW 0G'E N 16§ ¥S/9GF WS oI Wold

Z0P ¥S U0 § IW GZ'} uokeld wold

Py BaULRg UO I L N UBU} $9/28 SN UO M I G'p SBUIOJ $3Q Woid
N W Z pY 9S93\\/BSa|N PUBS 1O WOl

S IW ¥ 90F WS/QSH Y¥S 1or Wwold

31w g} pY SOWEIY/OLE ¥S o Woid

pY 0J2A8S UO (W GZ' SUBY} 3 (W O} PY AWSUIBBAN/F9/28 SN 10 WOl
2. ¥{S U0 MN IW G/'| Wosjo wold

W | N W G'0 PY 098Y9EJ/0LE Y¥S Wold

PY 8puULIS UO N I G SUO]SPED WOl

9G¥ ¥S U0 T IW G’} WOs|od Woly

M W Z PY J9S88Y/296 US 1o Wold

Py 0dUB|g OJLIBD O} S I 9 0Z) HS/ZLY/9G Or Woid
S W | P MBIAUIR|H/BUI3IBIS SEX8 L 1o ol
ZLY/9S SN UO € 1 & BUOISPEID Wl

W G1'0 WS Py 08I0 Jepad/py A8liM Jor ol

3 1W € 9G¥ HS/LGS S 19T Woid

S Iw G py Asuseg zip/9g SN Woid

31w 04°Z PY 19I402E/95Y IS 191 Woud

S W G'G PY Apauuay] /59/.8 SN 1O Wold

S 02} YS/Z0¥ ¥S Hor wold

3 1W G -90% ¥S N IN 22

GZE ¥S U0 J I 0Z Wos|o woly

20b ¥S UO S W | UoKel Woid

Py BaAM/Z8G ¥S 0rio 3

3 1w g py sBBog/zoy ¥S r wold

(22 ._m_m:m._>> uo Ap 1w m.o Uy} py emoly Uo S I § E:DQNO wol4
ZLP/9S SN UO M U Z UoKeID Wold

N IW | M 1w g py 119qdWeD/g0F HS 101 Wold

GZE WS Uo N 1 g'g uinded woig

2O¥ ¥S U0 S W g} UOMEID Wold

N W Z 207 HS/02Y S or Wold

3 1W ¥ pY BOBUIS/GOY US 1O WOl

S IW G 0LE HS/SZE YS 1or wold

S IW 0SS 0Z} ¥S/ZLY/9S o wold

€6 ¥S UO S W G'Z liAualD wolg

pY JeeApoos
pY uospoosy

pY sajezuon
Py auoispejo
Py HeqliD

py Aiesn

pY Jsuplesy

py elien

py deo

py tayBejen
pY sobajjen

Py 8lqeD

py Molng

pY Jeisallod

Py uewund

pY phoid

py Jepaay

pY Jagqied

py leinbs3

pYy uossouz

py sbuudg eiuenugy
py deo Alswy
py Alswig

Py su3

Py wejg

Py 0pIpU2sT BlEA IT
Py punpig

pY uospuowpz
py Mmaiq

py uoAueD oyoz
py soleD uog
PY Apayoq

py ai6oq

Py deoq

Py uo;

py pug pesd
Py siaeq

P 8oeld pired
py saneq

Py [eiueq

py Jeg-q

Py 40 inD

pY s8end

py 7 sso01D

pY uojybiaId
py yesd

Py UBMOD

py aur Aunog
PY POOMUOROD
py edwnuod
py Aewio)

py weydeld

Py YU

Py [edeyn speein
py uewdeyo
py 0oUE|g OJLeD
pY %9810 JEPaD




Jied pape|g
paulejUB {[em papelg
Jled papelg
Jied papelg
paulejuiel [[8M papelg
Jied papeid
paulBjUEIN [[2M Papelg
paulBlUE @M papelg
Jled papelg
paulEluIRl [|om papelg
Jied papejg
Jied pspejg
paulejuiR Jjam papelg
paulejuiRl [jom papelg
paurjuiely [|am papejg
Jled pspelg
Jieq pepeig
paulBluiR| [|9m papelg
paulgjuily [|om papelg
paulejulel j[om papelg
paulgjule|yl j[em pepelg
paulejuIB jjam papelg
Jled papelg
paulejuiBA [[9M pPapeid
paulgjuIBly (oM papelg
paulejuB|y {[om papelg
paulBjUIB |[BM Papelg

paulEJUIBI [IoM papelg
paulelUIB [jom papeld
paulejuiely [jam papejg
e papelg

lled pape|g

40 paouay

Jled

pauiejue [[om papelg
paulBlUIBl |[lem papelg
3o payooT
pautelutepy |jom pepelg
paulejuiely |jam papeig
Jied papejg
paulejuIR|y j[om papelg
paulBjUIBl ||]9M papelg
pauguiely [[am papelg
Jie. pape|g
paulBjuiely [[em papelg
pauiejutely ||am papelg
paulgjuiel (8 papelg
|jeD paxe0T]
paulBjUiBl [[9M papelg
pauieluiey [[am papelg
died pspelg
paulejuiE [[om pape|g
paulejuR [[om papelg
papeig

paulejuiRi [jom papelg
pauiBlUBI [[9M papelg
paulejuiegly [[am papelg

N ™o

™

vee
cel

¥Be

@ o™

<+ <

MM Mg MM
o

)

vee
vee
v®E
vee

F O mmm®m© <t T Tt

<«

TLTOOOTOOTOOTETOFTIT OO0

ot
0T
8l
oz
0c
24
8l
(4
f44
8l
8L
f44
(4

0C
0e
8l
14
8l
0C

150
o
6.0
6L
Lok
et
L¥L
L¥0b
98'0
609
G4
8€'0
0z'y
[ApA
alL’e
2:0%
90
£9°0
850
8L'C
92T
002
9z'0
86'L
16C
£€e'e
o¥'el
¥5'0
8L¢C
eeL
i¥'0
[2a%
¥8'9
gL'l
00'e
Lol
180
65T
(454
820
10’9
oLy
88'C
yANA
€0
002
0z'L
o
s
'8
8y’
s
204
g7}
seel
950
§.°0

3)no1 Jo pus 0} 3
3)n0J Jo pue o)

2JN0J JO pua o} A

py sBuudg adojsiuy oL
pY JuoLanig J99WW O} %oBG §
abe|iA eioq U NIY L
0/ S %S

aurt 9ie)S OpRIoIoD O} N
)nol Jo pus o} N

aul sels 01 3

3jnos Jo pus o) N

|01 JO pud O} N

PY HioId 01 S

96 SN % M

8JnoJ Jo pus 0] §

B8N0l jJo pus 0} S

uapAeH nuy} spug

8JN0J JO pUB O} §
BOUBUBJUIE JO PUS O} AA
9Jn0d JO pua 0} AA

2)nol Jo pUs 0} S

8Inol Jo pus 0} N

2Jnod jo pus o} N

BUITIS BPO 91 8/3

pY JejBuripy 0L

a)nol jo pus o} M

8ul 0D Xejj0) 0} §

2In0J O pua 0} 3

|0 jo pus 01 §

py soBajes o} N

N0l Jo pud O} M

8jnol jo pus 0} §

py 100ds 0} WN

N0l JO puUs 0} S

pY feqdwed ok N

aur] 09 Aend 0} S

3jnoJ Jo pus 0} /N

8)nol Jo pus o} WS

py sBuudg adojpiuy 0} §
8JnoJ Jo pus 0} §

pY qqo7 0} S - py sB6og oy N
20V ¥S 01 WS

pY 049ASS O} N

3}N0J JO puUd 0} AA

py shepy o} N

=IO W Ul £8 SN O} MWN
201 ¥S O} N/M

3)Jn0J Jo pus 0} S

201 dS 01 IN

B)Nod Jo pud 0} S

8JnoJ Jo pus o} AA/N UsUL
BJN0J JO pUS O} AA

py ossWoy 013

2Jn01 Jo pus 0} M

BIN0J JO pus O

@)n0l Jo pus 0} §

3Jnol Jo pus 0} S

N PY UBBIIN/Z. Y¥S 101 Woiy]

S 1w Z Py PUB|[OH/PY weyde(d 1oy Wwold
N W € 0Ly ¥S/90¥ YS 1or wold

S uapAeH woiy

S PY 1U048N|G/Z9G HS 1O Wol4

abejjiA Bi0g "IN WOLY

MIW L 0LE YS/PY HOUBAB 1O Wold

M IW G°9 957 MS/0LE ¥S oI Wold

$9//8 SN U0 J I § UoKeD Woig

S W | pYy JauYoa/1Lgy HS oI wold

M N §°G PY Uaddasys/ggy 1or woid

3 IW G pY suBiiad/Py BHOId 11 wold

T IW 2 LIy HS/Z0¥ WS Pr Wold

SIWG 2oy ¥S UoKe) Wwoid

31w 'L pY PIBYPIO/OS SN ¥9r Wold

3 W € 95 SN/ESY YS 1or woid

usphep ul uebag

3 IW G’} UOKE]S Je}s00g/90y S Jor wold
Py BMORY UO S W | uiinded woi4

95 US/PY J8s83Y Jor Wwolg

PY SpULD UO S W §°Z BUOISPB|O Wold

3 W G PY PEISILV/Z0Y WS W Wiold

3 Iw € py sbBog/zoy ¥s 1P

N W | Py 890PV/90¥% ¥S °r

S uyndeD wol4

N I 6'¢ Py 99A0d/9/L8 SN 1T Wold
MW G $9//8 SN SBUIOW s8Q Woi4

N Iw | pY lleqdwed/o/e ¥S 1or

M W 8 ZL/95 SN UoKelD woid

M W0} PY BUOS/ESY IS oI Wold

W G270 ¥9/L8 SN U0 S3UIOW s8] J0 3

M W Z BSBIA| PUBS/PY 3533 IO WOJ4

I W ¥ G9F US/OLE YS P wold

3 1w ¢ pY sbuudg adojeiuy/eur oo Buipsed wold
g IW | BSO\ PUBS 0} 3[{IAUBID WOLH

0Zy ¥S M W L L 0Z¥ MS/Z0Y US 101 Wol5
N iW 2 pY |leqdwed/o.g IS 191 Wold

G2E WS UO IW G/'| IS wosjod wold

aurt 09 BuipieH/ZoL ¥S Jor Wold

MN §2'0 95 HS/PY UoAUED UEO]S 40 JO0
L2y ¥S U0 T (W Z UBpag Wol4

M W G Py weyde|d/zoy ¥S 15 wold

M W ¥ $9//8 SN 3lIAUBID wold]

N I € Py @240y B $9//8 SN Jor wold
ZLP/9S SN UO W | UoeD wiosd

ZLP/9G SN UO M I € UOJAEID Woid

S Iw g py uepAeH/Z0L ¥S 1or Wwold

3 IW £ ZL/9G SN Uo UoieD woly

MW 9 Z0L ¥S/Z0Y WS 11 wold

S IW | 9G¥ MS/90Y Y¥S o1 Wold

1w g py uoAued Buc uo 3 W GL 9G¥ ¥S/LSS WS Jor Wold
0/€ ¥S U0 S 1W ¢ 0L€ HS/95F AS "I wold
S W G'0 Py UosIax2lY 01 3 1w G70 Pejsily Wold
1w 'L S py uolbuluusd/py BIBIN oI WOl
YHON 3UO}SPE[S) Wol4

M 1 G2 PY WABST/Z0Y S oI

1w gL pY sofelieD yg//8 SN 1or Wold

Py uosiiey
Py %9210 Jofep
Py wn7

py Aoy

Py 010
py doo

py Buo

py uokued Buo
py sas8u0T
Py 9907

Py &1

py Ausqn
Py Jouyds
Py wiAeaq
py seiybnen
py oBheT
py osse’
Py 1eueT

py ebie

pY Baky

Py Ueziy

pY Jaboy

PYH uya0y

P samouy]
pY emory

PY SIquiiy
pY Apauusy
Py Jesy

py uepiop
py sauop

Py sjeulr

py uosuyop
py esaly snsap
Py sqooer
Py UM

pY auo|

pY AspinH

py 90YsasIoH
pY 9¥e|asIoH
py moBasoop
Py UBLWIOH
Py pue(joH
Py UOSHIH
Py sepuy
Py doyiiH

py ebuiiey
py uuBWIOH
pY JajasH

Py uepheH
pY siieH

pY AisapieH
Py uojiwey
Py fleH

pd Ul

Py 8pulo
pY usai

pY spuein



Jied

Jeid papelg
paulelURW [|9M papelg
Jied papeig
pauiBluBI oM papelg
paulelUBlN ||9M papelg
paulBlUiEN [[oM papelg
pauEjuiRN |[@Mm papelg
paulBURN ||aM pape(g
paulejuiR (|am pape|g
paulejuiey {[8Mm papelg
paulBlUIBN [|oM papelg
pauleluB [[9M papelg
paulejuB {|3m papeld
PRUIBJUIBIN ([BM Pape|g
Jled papelg

Jied papejg
pauiBjUBN |[@M papelg

pauleluie) |jom papelg
pauejuiBly [|om papelg
paulejule j|sm papelg
paulejuz|y ||om papeld
Jted pepeig
Jied pspeig
paulejuiely [[am papelg
e popelg
paulejulRl @M papeig
paulejuiely |om papelg
pauigjuiely [[am papelg
paulejuiel j[am papelg
paulejuiely Jjam papelg
paulejuiey [|am papejd
pauleiuiely j[2m papelg
pauiejUiel |[em papelg
paulBlUBl jam papelg
Jied papeig
paulejuiRlA [jem papelg
paulejule) [[om papelg
lled pepelg
Jied papejg
Jred papelg
e paplelg
paulejuB [|am papelg
pauleluiRl [[8M papelg
paulejulel [|am papelg
Jied pspe|g
Jted pape|g
Jied papelg
paulBjUBIN [[3M popelg
paulBlUeN |[9m papeld
paulBjUBI |]aM papelg
Jied pspejg
lieq pepelg
Jied papejig
pauleluiel [lem papelg
Jted pepeig

<

~
M TN T OO TS M ENEEONOTOFTNOTOTENOTET T TIOOETELTO000INTANTTOTTEOOTOD

<«

©

[l

S¥'0
€0
£’z
G0
1% 4
8L°0
60°C
424
(o))
820
[40h4
9z'0
ST
080
L0'6
oLy
o5t
3]
86’y
Loy
G6°L
90T
9l'gl
80°1
o'k
€99}
[44Y
0T’
96’9
0£'C
290
80'¢
€Lo
86y
00°}
[
zLo
260
62°1
890
920
050
€0l
99l
£5'¢
99'%
¥8°0
810
0L'g
§2°9
PR
lge
99’0
gLl
20
960
26'C

8Jnoy Jo pus 0} §
3}N0J JO pUd 0} S

2jnol Jo pus 0} IS

ainol jo pus 0} N

ajnoJ jo pus o} N

81N0J JO PUS O} A\ BPIUMEY UO 1W 0G'} S
@Jnol Jo pus 0} §

Py shey o1 s

Py UOSpIEYDIY/aUIT B1B)S O 3
ainoy jo pug o} N

py edwnioDd o} yoeg N W g
UoRO@SIBIUI PY MBI/ UIBJUNOI O} S
aynol jo pua o} §

2jnol jo pus 0} 3

aur ejels 03 3

SW 0Ly S

8Jnol Jo pua o} AN

ajnol jo pua o} N

AmH socsakeng o} S/M

Py ByoIld 01 S

py eBulaH 03 %oeq S/3

Py jucyenig 01 S

aul] 00 Buipieq ol

3}N0J JO PUI O} S IW |

ajnol Jo pus o} N

0L€ WS 01 >0Bq MIN

3Jnou Jo pua 0} 3

PY OleAoT 0} doBq WS

aUr7 81BIS BPIO 03 3

8)N01 JO PUB O} S

}nol Jo pus o} My

N0 JO PUS O} M

AN ‘BJod WA nayL

pY Py uspAeH o} M

py sBbog oy §

L2y US 01 S

BJN0J JO pU3 0} A\

Py SuBjUSP [SBUDIN I1Q 0} W USU} PY MIA Blileld UO I 62" S
3)nol JO pUS O} AR

8JnoJ Jo pus 0} M\

9JN01 JO PUB 0} S

3JNo1 Jo pus 0} §

N0l JO PUB 0} §

ajnoJ Jo pus o} §/3

aJnoJ JO pus 0} N

ajnoJ jo pua O} N

)nou Jo pus of N

aJnod Jo pua o} N

3ol jo pus o} N

py Jebpay 0} 3 usyL S
ajnol Jo pus o} My

py oosyoed o} 3

B}JN0J Jo puUs 0} §

2JnoJ JO pUd 0} §

auri sjRIS 03 3

N0l Jo pus 0} §

au 00 Xeyl09 0} WS

31w 'L pY ABUIBSAN/L8 SN IO Wold
M 160 P USYIIN/ZLYS 1or Woid

S W € $9//8 SN uoieD wold

ZLP/9G SN U0 J IW §'T UCHeID Wold
GZE ¥S U0 N W §'} saulo}y saQ woly
Py 8PIUMEY/ZLP/OG SN 1Or Woid

py Ausyieap uo 3 1w g

¥9//8 SN UO N 1W G UOIABID W0l

S IW ¢ Py JauYasY/Lgy ¥S 1r Woid
M W | PY SOWEY/0LE HS 101 Wold
31w Z py eqdwed/py BAWNLOD 1or WSS
96/SN U0 T 1w g UoleD wold

M W G°9 ZL/95 SN Uoiked Wolg

| py sBBog/py si[eD Jor wold
295 ¥S/20¥ HS or wold
AmH uepag/AmH aur 9181S 1o Wold
Z by seAaed/py >wc._mm 100 wol4
$9/96 SN U0 UoKeID Woy I IW €

N W Z 20} ¥S/Z0b ¥S Jor woid

uepss Jo 3 W |

Py mmc.ch Uo g 1w Z ejoQg YA woid

31W | ZLP/9S SN EGY HS oI Wold

S ZLb ¥S/9G SN/PY suowesed jor

M 1W Z Py UOSHBGOY/L0Y US 1O Wold

3 W ¢ Py AUeUYIEapN/pY/28 SN 10T Wold

3 1w € Py OUBNV/0LE US O

W spy ‘_m_mcmL>>\um Apauuay] jor wold

S 6L PY 0}BAOT/Z9S HS 1o Wosd

N 95 SN/90¥ ¥S 11 Woid

ZLY/9G SN UO M 1 G/ UOKEID Woly

S 1w Z pY saAeq/py >m:._mm or wodd

SIW | LGS ¥S/9GH ¥S tor wold

N ‘eJod I Uj

S W 0£°0 AMH PejSIWY/ Z0p S 1or Woid

M W | pY MOUNZ/Z0p ¥S 11 Wold

1w 2 3 py s66og/zoy ¥S 1or wold

S W G'0 PY BPIYMEY ZLH/95 SN 10f Wold

PY MBIA SUlBId PUB ZL/9S SN 19T O} T 1 G'Z UOKRID Woly
§Z€ S U0 N 1w g unded woud

MS IW g pY seleqeuld/py Asused 1of Wold

$9//8 SN U0 M I\ Z SSUION s8Q Wold

M 1W G| pY 00UEIg 0}1L8D/0Z) 1O WOl

J W G0 P Woybuol/ZLy/9g SN 1or Wold

Py 2dolv/g0p ¥S Wold

MN 1 € 22 {S Wosjo Wwol

M W G PY OPUBIY/90P HS 1o Woid

M W | ul Buiiod/py uoibuiiuad jor

J WG} ZLp/96 SN UoMe|D woly

YHON Wos|jo4 wod4

W Z py Aesduwen/Loy ¥S or Woid

ucike|D jo 8Bp3 Z11/9G SN UoKEID Woi M

N IW Z py 01RUSIY/0LE Y¥S 1or Woid

3 1W Z py 0JeA3S $9/L8SN WI Wold

3 W Z PY UOSHIH/PYOISAISS JOP Wold

S W g py Jabpay/py Aesdwed jop wolq

$9//8 SN U0 M I §'Z SBUIOW $8Q Wold

3 W | py Apauus)j/aury 00 XBJj00 J0 3o

Py youey

Py moquiey
Py ¢ Jeyey
Py Je3 jiqqey
Py sunng

Py BaYond

py Jokid

py woybuolg
Py Wiyold

Py 2oud

Py ajeq auleld
Py MaIA LRl
py anfod

pY Auwaszpod
py mauteld
py sedid

Py sajaqeuld
pYy alaseld

py Jayoeqyosiad
py sunied

py ¥e8ID odlad
py uoiBujuusd
py sjuowesed
py UBwIEd

Py ElUORd

Py 093yoed
pY SIBHANO
pY [8IN.O

py JanIo

Py PIBUPIO

Py Jodeg PO
py uoAued ¥eo
Py 8AN

py 3 8IN

Py [N

pY uojmaN

Py soIsnin

Py MBIA UIBIUNOW
Py MOLOW

Py ouejUOl
py uobeipuon
Py lIBIPON

Py pAgBUBOON
Py 320N

Py U

pY S8l

pY BISIN

Py MaIA BSOIN
pY uslyBneNoN
Py Aedol

Py skey

py YousAey
pY ZauReN

py zenbJiepy
py Jevsuepy
pY ejepuepy
Py audien




PpauBIUB |[3M papelg
ARemanug

paujejuiel [jom papelg
paso|D 8.

sed

1Q e1eALId/AREMBALC
pauRJURI ||9M PapE|g
paulRjUiB ||am pape|g
pautejuteiy ([am pepelg
Remanug

paulejuie oM papeld
paULBlUB [|8m PapEig
Remanug

Jled papelg

Jied papejg
pauiBjUBN [[8M papelg
paulBjUuiR\ |[3Mm papelg
PpaulBjuiBi ||3m papelg
Jied papeig

Jle4 pepelg

Jied pspeld

PapeE|g 1oN

died

paulejuiel [[om pape|g
paulejulRBA {[8M pape|g
paulBjUIB |[3M PapeElg
paulBUIBI ||3M papE(g
paulgjuiB ||9m papelg
lied pape|g

Aled pape|g

die4 papelg

ajen payoo
pauelURI (oM papeld

paUIBILIEN [[oM PapEIg
paulEgjufe/ ([8M papeig
paulBlUB ([3M Papeld
paueIUEIN lI9M PapeIg
paulelulel llam papelg

1124 papelg

Jied papelg

Jie4 papelg
paUIBIUIE l[9M PapEIg
paulBlUeIN [j3M papelg
paulgjUIEN [[aMm PapE(d
pouelUiElN [[3M papelg
pauEIUIEIA [I9M PopEIE
paulEIUIelN [[aM PapeIg
paulgiUIe ljam papeld

paulBjuiBiy {[3m papelg
Jied papelg
J1e papeig
dted pspejg
Jied pepelg
paulgjUlBl ||oM pape|g
pauBlURIA ||3M Papeig
psulBlUR ||am papeig

< < ~

<
TP LT O FO O T T TONTOOTORFFOEOTONDDO T T MM

~

MmO T OO OmOm T OO T OT MO M

® o

9l
0z
4
9l
8l
8l
8l
8l
(44
9l
1%
(44
9l
13
8L
144
8L
0c
13
8l
9l

0e0
L20
Loe
980
98l
660
1-x4
80
g8’
(78]
650
9C'9
69'G
120
€5’
9Ly
06°0¢
vLe
280
i<4:18
80
€10
€20
160
09’9
6C°L1
6.8
€2'g
190
Lo
¢Tee
§8°0
V'L
e
00°}
gl'e
50
8061
188
.0l
€10
8v'lL
98'e
86'8
SE0
8L'c
BE'G
820
vi'le
oL'8
651
8¥'0
e’y
8Le
20
144
09'4

9Jnol Jo pus o} J uayl
ajno. Jo pus O} N

py ebuueH o1 N
@jnol jo pus 0} 3
3Jnol Jo pud 0} S
3jnol Jo pus o} A
KemybiH uonelg Jaysoog o} N
8JnoJ JO pus 0} A\
8IN0J M JO PUS O} N/M PUEB PY SH[BD o1 18 pus 3
ajnol jo pus 0} /N
youey niyy dood
ajnoJ Jo pus o} N

pY uosjeNoly 0} S
8)N0J JO pUL O} M\
3)n0J Jo pus 0} I/S
sulmsEIs 013 pue s
BUIT 0D XBYOD O
8)nod jo pua 0} 3
8)n0J Jo pua 0] AMAN
Py ooayded 0} MS
2)no0J JOo pus O} N
$9/.8 SN S8UO 58 U
8jnoJ jo pus 0} 3
8jnoJ JO puUd 0} A
ajnoJ Jo pua 0} N

Py Apayieaps o} N/M
2Ly9s sn

Py ss|mouy 01 3
@)No. JO pud 0} A
PEOY SAUIAING 0} J
3jnoJ JO pus Ol M
ajnol jo pua 0} N

pY 8s99pp 01 T

B)N0I JO pus 0} M
2JnoJ JO PUS O} M\
Ziy/es snova

B8N0 jo pus O} N

pY lleqdwed o} N
Amy sereA 0} 3/s/3
AmH 8|lInIBIUBD 0} S
8jnoJ Jo pus 0} N
21no1 o pua 0} N
8IN0J 4O pUs O} A\

pY U0l 0} M

3Jnol Jo pus o} N

py Jepaed 0} 3

a0t Jo pus 0} S
3JnoJ Jo pua o} N
oleds oL

py Joboy 0} S 'pY 499dS O} N
8nel Jo pus 0} S
3)nos Jo pus o} N

Pl MOIAUIEI O} S
8)nol Jo pua 0} A\
B10Q ‘WA Jo 86 nypL
pY malAUIRld 0} S
2JN0J 4O pUS 0} S

Py BYOS 0} N SUOISPEID 18 PY SPULD/P9/95 SN 0T Wold
snwin Ao jo abpa 1y

MN W Z ASIIM/ZLF/9G SN 17 Wold

MN "IN §7"MoBIS00H/9GY HS 1T ol

M W € PY 3 8IIN/Z0F HS 1O Wold

W g'e pY oJsWoy/py >mmow Prwol4

3 1W g Py UIBUNOI 3IPPES/90Y HS 1O Wold
S W G/'} Py USPABH/ZO} YIS 1Or Wold

O} M PUE 3 U10q UBY} PY PE3IS/Z0Y ¥S 1O Wold
3 W G2°0 90F ¥S/9G HS jor wold

3 1w € P BIYOEd/PY Alyieap jor wold
M IW | 9GF HS/OLE JS 1o Wold

I 1W | pY BOId/PY Subtiad or Wold

S 1w G'0 P BaAY/ZSH YS 1or Wold

MW 0t PY AHBUIBSAN/OLE HS JO JOI Wold
31w Z Py lieH 0 Py PejsiuY wold

M BJOg N Wol4

S IW ¥ pY BUOS/ESY ¥S 11 Woid

3 1W & py SjoysBieM/PY AloUIBBAN 1O Woid
MN IUW Z Py UOSPOOD/GYY HS IO ol

3 1W ¥ Py 098YoRd/0LE HS 1O Wold
JUBINEIS9Y SPURILS) BLIBIS punosy

S W §'Z pY Apauud)/¥9/L8 SN IO Wold

1W G Yog suoispejo wol4

MN IW Z Py XT/85¥ 4S 101 Wosd

N W | Py 8pUBID $9//8 SN 1O WOl

M\ W Z BUI IS YO Wiold

S W | BOBUAS WOl

N W L Py SHliED/L 2 WS 1O Wold

GZE YS Uo N 1w ¢ SauUioly se( Wol4

UInos 1w Z Py UBMOD/PY WiHOId 10 Wold
MN G'0 PY BSSIA YOBIG/9GY HS 1o WOl

N 8jjiaualo wol4

Z0¥ S U0 S 1 §'g Uoe|D Woly

MW | pY [qdWED/PY UM 1O Wold

N W 62} ZL/9G SN/Q0F HS 10 Woldy

M W G Z9G ¥S/Z0Y HS 1or Wold

AN 1 g py uoybuoid/ye/.g SN 1o Woid
Py @uoisSpE[D UC S IW Z suoispe|o) Wold

3 1w & py JeBOM/PY UOSIMLY 11 WO

3 64 ZL/OG SN UoKe(D woid

MN IW € $9//8 SN UOIKE[D Woid

Py Emr_um_o\vm J1apmolg Jof Wol4

P ZI08/20F HS 191 Wold

95 SN U0 M 1 0Z UoAeID Wold

3N W GE0 PY PIGBUNOON/YY/L8 SN 19F Wold
M I 621 ABIIN ZLP/9G SN 1Or Wold

M IW T $9//8 SN SBUIOW $3Q Wold

N HwI abe IA SBUION S8 Wold

3 1w g py supjdwo /g0y HS 191 Wiold

aujI 81ElS 0} 3 1 T Py 189dS/PY 10id 1o Woid
Jues _:nNO woJt4

31w G py Aesdwed/gop ¥S 1or wold

MU L Q0% HS/ZeS HS 1or Wwold

'10Q YA JO 3BEJjIA Wold

3 1w £ py Aesdwed/gop YS 1or wold

3 1W Z 90¥ Y¥S /ZHi/9S SN 1o ol

pY UoAUED Jojsaja L
py aadas)

py Ausbems

pY seidwing

PY usAeysuols
Py suolg

py dnuis

PY UOSUBARIS
pd peSIS

py Jndg

pY libunds

py joods

py Jeads

Py sismos

Py o4 yinog
py ABBos

Py Byog

pY Japhus

Py ylws

py UoAueD ueo|s
Py M XIS

PY apueld) BISIS
pY eualS

py Hebnys

pY Usd doays
py cJansg

py Aajjen eosUag
py BOo8USS

py A1sjowag uepes
py Uojess

Py HooS

Py Jeyeuds

P BS3 pues
Py meig pueg
Py 981D pueg
Py UIBUNON 8jppes
P llessny

py a0hoy

pY Asuoy

py oJawoy

P ospoy

py @bpapooy
Py HouIqoy

pY uospeGoY

py Aot

Py Joxury

py auoqbury

Py ey

py abpry

Py uosiay

pY uospIeyd!
Py ElEl

py ucioyy

py Josasy

py paay

py Jebpay

Py aplumey




Ha-€
ayolje0-H

paulelue |8 Papelg
pauiBluiRl [IBA\ Papelg
Ppaulejuieiy |l Pepelg
pauleluiE []BAA Pepelg
paulejuieil (oM Papelg
paueluie|\ oA Pepeld
paulgjuisiN li8M PepRIg
paulejien [[PAA pepelg
pauijuiBl []2A POPEIG
pauiejulely (|9 papeig
paulgjuiey {lBAA PapeRIg
paulRluIBi IIPAA PopEld
pauteulen 19N Papelg
paulRlUIEBl [I9AA PSPEIG
paulgjulBlA IS PopEIg
pauiejuiely lI9AA PPEIG
paulgjuielN [P Papeld
PaUIBJUIR [[SM POPEIE
pauleliel []9M PaPEIg
paulejuiBlA [IBA Pepelg
pautelulel lIBM papelg
pauijUIB oM papelg
paulgjuigly jlam papelg
paulBjule |[om papelg
paulgjulei ||oM papeig
pauleluie| [[2m papelg
e pepelg

pauigjuiely [[am pepelg
lieq pape|g

paulBjuIB [I3M pepelg
died

pauleIUIEN [I9M pepEld
paulEjUlEl [I3M Papelg
Jied papeig

Jie 4 papelg

pepe|g 1oN

paueIUiE lIsMm papeld
pauIBUIE M PapEIg
papeig 10N

papelg JoN

paufeluiei Jism papelg
paulEIUIBIA II3M Papelg
J124 pepelg

Jied papelg
Juiel (oM papeld
JUlEI [13M papeIg
Jied

O MO O OO T O TTTELTTEE TS T T T T

PEOI SIU} JO JED Sa3E} OPRIOIOD
¥

™ o < o m <

MMt Mmoo m T

8l
8l
8l
13
8l
8l
8l
8l
13
13
81
8l
8l
8l
8l
8l
8L
8l
13
13
°13
0z
0z

8l
8l
8l
8l
8l

9t

8l
44
{44
[44

8L
8l

0e
8L
8L
8l
44
8l
9l

8S°LLLL

€20
200
2e0
€0
34¢]
SL'o
olo
0ogo
6€°0
L0
9€°0
£¥°0
[24Y]
o
610
800
€00
620
920
820
120
L8
€0y
pA s
Loe
¥y
g0
€9,
206
8¢
180
991
L
86°01
sLee
65°0
€80
1oe
660
8zt
920
85}
oL's
ee’l
80°L
206
8z0lL
€50

3|[IAUSID Ul SN
BflAUBIO Ul (VT
ajIAuaID Ul AW
ajjiaueID Ul (VI

3|JIAUBID Ul SN

a|pAuaID Ul A3
ajjiAuRID Ul A3
ajiauaID) Ut AN/T
ufinded ul /N
inded ul W3
IndeD ut W3
ugnded ut /N

unde9 ul §/N

uyndeg ul $/N

uiinded ul /N

ugnded Ul S/N

uinded ul 3

uiinded ul /3

uindeg ul g/N

ulinded Ui S/N

Bjno jo pus 0} S

pY aur AunoQ 0} M

9JNo1 O pUs 0} §

Py 9508 0} I/N

295 US 01 %oBg M

)noJ Jo pua 0} 3

ajno jo pus o} IN/A

Py %8210 JEPSD OF MIN

@JnoJ jo pud O} N

8JN0J JO pUS O} I | N

8inos o puB 0} M AN O3]

py 009ydEd OF N

ajnos Jo pud O} N

0LE YS9 3

seW gl s

8)nol jo pud 0} M\

Py UOSIONIAA OF N

py Wopsim o} N

ajnoJjopus 0} S

@jnol jo pus 0} 3

2JN0J JO PUS O} AA

17 8elS 01 3

8Inod jo pus 0} N

9IN0J JO pus 0} N

ZOPUS OIF W ZS W L IWZ O}
uoloasIalUl Py UspAeH O} A
8JnoJ Jo pus o} J

$Z02/Ye/L P BSS YOBIg JO NS00 [BIHEd
$20Z/p2/L PIsOP pY AquInD

202/72/L pesop py sikes

¥202/72/) Pasod Py Janod

6102/01/6 P8SOP pY pieD

3jIAuaID Ul S/N
siinuaID Ul M3
aIAUSID Ul AN/
siauBID Ut AAF
allAUBID Ui SN
JlIAUBID Ul SN
3IAUBID Ul AN
BfjiAUBID) Ul (AT
BljIAUBIS Ul AN/T
Inded ut SN

unded ur M3

ujnded ul /3

uinded ul /N

uinded ul SN

undeQ ul /N

unded ul SN

ulinded ut /N

uinded ut M/3

uinded ui /3

ulnded ui S/N

uginded ul SN

MW | PY PESIS/Z0Y Y¥S Wold

S 1w € Py Apauusd/y9//8 SN 1o Wold

M W 0S" PY JSIIA/PY Olously Jor Wodd

pY uosuyor/py ESSN pues o Wwol4

S W} pY JAUPIED/ZYG HS 10 Wold

N 1w g py 86pIy/0/€ HS 11 Wodd

3 1w 6 PY 8Bp/sBUIO S8 Jor Wodd

TN W | pY BuogBury ZLy WS/9G SN jor wold
96 US/90F HS 19r Wol

MW | Py UUBWISH/PY UspAeH Jor
3/£-NZeL U0 N J0 JewoD 3N epjo Ul Uifsg
MUIN Z PY JOUSABIN/OLE MS JOr Woig

N BIOQ HA 1B 28/¥9 SN 10r Woid

18/%9 SN U0 S IW € SBUIO 3 WOl

pY ABBog/py oJjawoy jor Wol4

NIWG8 0/EdS

I 1w Z°01 Y AMBUIEBAN/LB/YS ST 1o1 W0l
3 1W | Py YRIO/ZIS ¥S Jor woly

MN W G 90Y ¥S/9SY HS oI Wold

9GH WS Uo IW g WOos|o4 Wwolq

N/M ItU Z Py SOWEIY/0/€ HS 10f Woly

S W | Z0v ¥S/PY Weyde|d jor wold

M W Z Py ssuor/py sobsi(eo jor wold

M W € P umoig/py 8Bp1d 1or Wios

S W Z Py 8sdweD/Z0y WS 19r Wwold

Z0¥ ¥S BuISSOID IW G2'9 WS USUY W 6Z°0 T P UOSIeMDIN/pY Joads jor wold
S W §Z's Py ABUIeg/ZL1/98 SN 1o Wold

1S puooes
1S uoey

1S ule

1S Wb

BAY 3sild

BAY Yyl
JanuaQ
aBsjj0D
uoibuiung
ewjeA

IS payL

1S puooss

aAY 84 BJUES S
Jepad's

uouly

94 ejues N
Jepad N

1S yHno4

1S Ui

BAY [BI0JBWIWOD
aAy unded

PY PY Younz
py seiBuBIp
Py WA

Py UBWISSIM
PY WopsIM

Py UOSIDHIIM
py Aslim

Py suIBBIM
PY PIM

PY ASpium
Py 3400y SHUM
Py 8s39 N
py Auayieapn
PH YHOM

Py SI9HEM
PY @jouisiepy
Py o4EM
py 1oubep
Py BljEsIA

py oJanbep
pY JoAipueA
pyuny

Py 21903ABI L
py Asuoy

py supjdwo].
py UosBwoy |



$Z0T/e/L Py UOSPOOD JO 8INSO[] [BiUEd




UNION COUNTY
Resolution No. 2024-33

Authorization of General Fund (401) (DFA # 11000) tranfer and Jail-Detention Fund (424) (DFA #
22600) transfer and budget increase

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Union County meeting in regular session on Febrﬁary
8, 2024 did propose to make budget adjustments; and

WHEREAS, the County of Union does, through Budget Resolution 2024-33 ask that authorization
for the budgetary adjustments be granted, as summarized in the attachment; and

WHEREAS, the County of Union wishes to increase the transfer from the General Fund to the Jail
- Detention fund by twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000.00). The Board of County
Commissioners would also like to increase expenditures in the Jail - Detention Fund (424) by
seventy-five thousand dollars ($75,000) for expenditures related to care of detainees and jail
contracts.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the Board of Commissioners of Union County does
hereby approve the aforementioned budget adjustments and respectfully requests the
authorization for the budgetary adjustments and revisions be granted by the Local Government
Division of the Department of Finance and Administration of the State of New Mexico.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have hereunto set our hands and official seal this 8t day of
February 2024.

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS - UNION COUNTY

Clayton Kiesling, Chairman
ATTEST:

W. Carr Vincent, Member

Brenda Green, County Clerk

Lloyd Miller, Member



BAR 13-36-15632 printed from LGBMS on 2024-02-02 10:45:42

State of New Mexico - DFA Local Government Divigion
Budget Adjustment Request - Union County - 2024
BAR Jail Transfer and Increase

Bar ID Contact Phone Emall Status
13-38-15632 ENTITY
Details
Fund Department Object Code PreAdjusted Budget A A Budget
| |
1 1uog (ﬁﬂl‘llﬂl' Oparating Fund oood Ialg Department 81 %%ga’rﬂntfﬁm Out 780,000.00 | 25,000.00 805,000,00
| |
223022.{?" - Delention ool Igg Depariment 611 ng“tl‘mnalom In 280,000.00 25,000.00 305,000,00
220910 ::JB" - Datention 8002 l'.;?an!lnn Center | Eﬁﬂzﬂsﬂﬂ?nnlmu! = Other Services ‘ 280,000.00 70,000.00 | 350,000.00
2 | |
22800 Jail - Delention 8002 Delention Canter Eﬁﬂgglguppﬂaa - Other 2,000.00 5,000.00 7,000.00
424 7 .
Justification

Compliance with Section 6-6-2, NMSA, 1978 compilation:

1. The requested budget adjustments were authorized at a scheduled Governing Body meeting open to the public on 2024-02-08
2. Justification should provide a sufficient explanation for budget adjustment. Backup documentation such as grant award letter or other documents
requested by Budget and Finance Analysts, should be submitted on LGBMS.

Approvals
= s Role | i
G2 === | LB
Analyst

| Bureau Chief I

171



INO¥A 'S Z0T aIvd
$I10L LOLT
LO"LT z€88¢ $Z0ZEOTOY A1ddNS T8ETTTHANI ATddNS AHETIAY¥¥d  TI8ETITT
ST$88 WN NOLAVID Tvd 86°6%
JINO¥d °S 20T aIvd
$I0L 86 6%
86 6% z€88¢ $Z0ZEOTOF X1ddNS 0€ETTTHANI AddnS XETaYdd 0€£€ZIT

STP88 WN NOLAYID TYd 6616
INO¥WA S ZOT  aIvd
$10L 66716
66°T6 z£88¢ z1025220% ATddNS ¥Y68ETHANI ATddNS AFIAVIA ~ PY68ETL
ST¥88 WN NOLAYID Ty  16°86
INOJA S ZOT  aIv¥d
$10L T16°86
T6°86 z£88¢ 180Z80T0% SHITAANS ONINVIATD PEEZTTHANI A1ddNsS AATIQvdd  PEECTT

ST¥88 WN NOLAYID TYd 86°5826
avod NEZ¥D ¥ dIv¥d
$IO0L 867586
86°5826 L006T ZT02SZZ0%  0STd 6002 ¥OIOW UFINILOVANNYAII FOHTIAYES OILOY S.a¥¥€  $Z0CTET

S€ZT €L909 TI ODYDIHD TYd TLC 18
AOVId MUOMIAN LESEZ  dIVd
$10L TL T8
TL 18 95062 9L0ZT9CI¥ SHITAIAS TYDIAEN DT ‘IYDICEN HEEL ANNO"Y  $Z0ZOET

0%LL8 WN NOLVY v S9°1Z
LT X0d "0°d aivd
SIOL S§9°1¢
S9°1C 8LL8BT 9L0T99VTY ASYHET JAANITAD T09ZZD-FTHANI OT1 SLLANNIE T092ZD-¥v¢C

0TZ88 WN VYISHILIY T¥d 00°%90CT
L9ET X0d "0°d arvd

0076966 9988¢C T80CIVLOY SHAOTD/SI00E/AVED 086 T8HANT $I0L 00°%90CT
0075602 3988¢ T80TCTIVLOY THAIMS /ATZZON 086 T8H#ANT “ONI INIWNIINOE HITA YISHIAY 08618
TOT88 WN SIAOTID I¥d  00°L%S

aslg SddEHOS Tz  aI¥d
$I0L 00°L%S
00" L¥%S £506C 9.0Z6760% LXH HIIA TUONNY THZTETO-AMIHANT ONI ODIXHEW MAN A0 O¥dHIIA VVY IPZIETO-ATL

10188 WN SIAOTD TYg  9€°T9¢€
asld SddEHDS 12 aIvd

$I0L 9€°19¢€

9€°19¢€ £5062 9,025%80% JXHT FITA TYANNY 0¥ZTETO-NTIHANT ONI ODIXHEW MIN A0 O¥dHIIA WYY 0FZTETO-NAA

TOT88 WN SIAOID TYg  0L°T99
antd sdddHDs Tz aIvd

$IOL 0L T99

0L°T99 £5062 9L0ZLSTTY JIXH HENIA TYANNY CTHZTETO-AMI#ANT ONI ODIXHW MAN JA0 OddHITA WYY TYZTETO-AMI

T0T88 WN SIAOTD TYg  YT°6L8
aaTdg SddEHDS T2z dIvd
$I0L VI 6L8
T 6L8 £506¢C 940Z€S0TY IXH HYII TYANNY €PZTETO-MMIHANT ONI ODIXHEW MEN 40 ONITIIA VYV €YZTETO-NQ

Junowy #0d wo3T SUTT uotadraosaqa sweN #DANI

T :obed SHDIOANT ONIANYISLNO 90:80:9T ¥$Z/S0/T :@3ed



9L TTILT

66°60T

06 18T

26°6CT

-66°9T

66791

69°9

66 8T

8T°ST

86°S¢C

88°§8¢

66" 1T

€T0CSTZ0V

000-TTISTPOT-TOO#

TOD “¥ES TIVIDNUNIA ¥VTIIdEELYD

0€EL096FE

L806L XI ENITXHL
LEHILS ANZ N 00¢€

JIINID LI-00 SNENg

TYE 66°60T

arvd

$10L 66°60T
0E€T6¥T0TY

L806L XI HANITIXHEL
LHAILS ONC N 00¢

YHINID LI-0d SNENd

TYd 067 TI8T

arvd

$SI0OL 06 18T
09%8%10CVY

unowy

z :obedg

we3I SUTTI

SEDIOANI ONIANV.ISINO

uotadTIosed

L806L XI HNITXHL
IIFILS ONZ N 00¢€

JHEINAD LI-00 SNENL

L806L XI HENITXEL
LEHILS ANZ N 00¢€

YHINID LI-00 SNINd

L806L XI ENITXHL
LEFILS ANZ N 00¢€

YHINZD LI-O0d SNINg

ST$88 WN NOLAYID
INOJYd 'S 20T

A1ddNs AFIavad

ST¥88 WN NOLAYID
INO¥d "S 20T

A1ddNs AdTIaVdd

STy88 WN NOILAYTID
ILNO¥A S 20T

ATddNs AdIavdE

ST$88 WN NOLAYID
INOJd "S5 20T

ATddNs AFIAVEd

ST¥88 KWN NOLAVID
INO¥dA 'S 20T

A1ddNs AETAVI"E

ST¥88 WN NOLAYID
INOd4 S 20T

A1ddNs AITAYEL

ST$88 WN NOLAWYID

sweN

90:80:9T

arvd

$SIOL T6°6TT
L0€E8YTOCY

TYd -66°9T

aiva

$10L -66°9T

702221

TvE 6691

aivd

$I0L 66°9T

zZZT0%20¢

TYd 6979

arvda

$10L 6979

PEYITT

Tdd 667 8T

arvd

$IOL 66°8T

I0%ZTT

TYd 8T°ST

arvd

$I0L 8T ST

ZEVITT

Y9  86°SC

arvd

$I0L 86°SC

9T¥#ITIT

TvE  SS°6¢

arva

$I0L S§S°S2

0ZPTITT

T9d 66 TT

arva

SI0L 66 1T

88ETTT

T9d  LO°LT

#DANT
$Z2/50/2 :@3ed



AMH JEONI¥AS S  QI¥d
$I0L 98°8SC
98°85C 2682 €Z0ZEOTOP ¥YHE II99vd 10 dIVAHI XOd THLIAW DIMIDETE M % 1 ZSIL

S0S99 SM NYLLVHNVN T¥d 0P " TIPST
. 69 X0d "0°d arvd
TT° €8G¢ 9%06¢C TETCSP80F LSHEYEINT NYOT HONUYNIA INFWNIIAOD $I0L O¥% TITIPST
62782811 99062 0ETZSP80% TYdIDNIdEd NYOT MNVE HIVLS SX vZ0C-€-6¢E¥LS

ZTTL8 KN ZNOIANONITY TYd 08 TO¥T
AN CaaTd INYENd 0991 aIvd
$1I0L 08°T0%T
08°TO¥T 9982 8ZTZ80T0¥ HOWNY AQO€ TETT8H#ANI ISEM S NYWANYI  TI€TTS

8TT6L XI OTIIUYWY TYg 00 €902%
*1S HEOVSO § ZhI8  dIVd
$I0L 00°€902%
00°€£90C% SZ06T 820788709 NIVE ¥ ¥0A SPOOA AYHHMAAO MEN 9 DT ‘¥00d AQVEHNEAO ALI¥OIINI  T-PL¥9

$L89 £6909 TII ODYDIHD TYE €6 6€T
$.896 X0d "O°d  dI¥d

$10L €6°6€T

£6°6€T 5€£88¢ SZ0ZESOTYH LANIHEINI 7S9T0DSDHLIOY DT SWHISAS MMOMIAN IENSHHONH 0LS6TVLIYIE

IS NIVYW HLNOS 096 aIivd

00°09¢C 5988¢C 9¢0T801I0% SHIDITOd FSIAHA 3 MIINAFYL OTT 'dNo¥D MY HTIDIVA 8LES

AMH NOIVM ¥0€S  QIvd
SI0L 6S°G6
65756 8988¢C 9L0ZZVLOY TYEN ONINIVEL INIWIMYIEA ZNYD VIHINAD £20Z202T

8188 WN SHNIOW S&d I¢d  00°2ZLTC
AYMHOIH NOLVY $0€S arvd
$IOL 00°2LTIC
00" 2LIT 27062 $Z0Z€0T0% YIAAYT JOIYILXHT A0 NOILVITV.LSNI "ONI S¥HJIING IT0D LL-0C

Y2788 WN FTTIANTIED TYE 9L°8¥L
INVT ANNEL T¥  QIvd
$I0L 9L 8¥L
9L 8YL $668C 0T0ZTIOTOV TIAVIL $TAL ONITSITM NOLAVID  $Z0Z8TT

HID 8V€ET arvd
DT1 'SNOILYIZA SIOL TZ 6VET
ZT 6%ET v6L8C TOTZIOTIOY ONIAHHOT ¥TAL INTINNIHEAOD ALITIAID 09

ST%88 KN NOLAYID Tyvd 2T T198T
HAY ISEM S 6881  dIvd
$10L ZT 198T

2171981 95988¢ ZIO0ZESOTP T QWD JIVATY YHILVAH 3 SHITL MAN OLNY ANV HJIL TdD $202¢eCT

T 6262 86L8C £€10259220% 000-S09LZOT-TOO0# L¥90 68TT6 YD UNIHAYSYd I¥¢d 6S°090TT

9L TTLT 86L8C £T029220% 000-82Z6C0T-TO00# L¥900T X0d O 4 aIivd

9L TTLZ 86L8C €T0Z2ST207 000-0£26C0T-T00# SI0L 6S°090TT
Junowy #0d we3I SUTI uot3dTIossa SweN  #DANT

€ :obeg SHDIOANI ONIANVLSINO 90:80:9T ¥%Z/S0/T :@3ed




66 TLT

8L°9¢C

96799

-6v°¢C

CT 0%

26°9¢t

T6 9¢t€

86 66T

86 ¢T

0¥ €€

6%°CT

TZ 81T
ST 67
¥1°89

ZT0CS2C0%

T80CEOTO¥
600C90T0¥
9¥02E0TO¥

ws3T SUTII

SHDOIOANI ONIANVLSINO

LTHN dDT
qIdvd
SEITAANS JOLINYL

uotadransaq

SI¥Yd L[ DI SHEINTO OW

ST¥88 WN NOLAYID
¥6 X0g "0O°d

SI¥¥d [ DIF SHINTD OW

ST¥88 WN NOILAVTID
v6 Xod "0°d

SIMVd £ DIF SHINTO ONW

ST¥88 WN NOLAYID
¥6 X049 "0°d

SI¥Yd [ DIF SHINTD OW

ST¥88 WN NOLANYTID
¥6 X08 "0°d

SI¥¥d L DIE SHINTID DOW

v6 X0d "0°d
SI¥Yd [ DI SHEINTD DW

ST¥88 WN NOLAV'IO
¥6 X0d "O°d

SI¥vYd £ 9I9 SHEINTO DK

¥6 X0d "0O°d
SI¥¥d [ DIF SHINTD OW

ST%88 WN NOLAYID
v6 X0€ "0°d

SI¥VYd [ DIg€ SHINTD DR

ST¥88 WN NOLAVTID
ve X0d "0O°d

SI¥Yd [ DIF STANTO DR

ST¥88 WN NOLAYID
¥6 X0& "0°d

SIMVd £ DIE SHINTID DKW

Z069L XL OTHDNY NVS
688¢ X0d

ANVAWOD ¥HAYd ATIEIAAYH

sweN

90:80:9T

185£8-02C6
TYd 8L 9¢
arvda

$I10L 8L°9T
Z¥S€8-0226
Tvd 96759
arvd

$I0L 96759
0%S€8-0226
Ve -6%°C

aIvd

$I0L -6V°C
LTSE8-0TT6
TYd 2T 0%
arvd

$I0L <CTI 0%
975€£8-0226

T9d  T6°9¢E¢E
arvd

$IOL Z6°9¢tE
L6VEB-0CZ6

TYE 26 9€€
arvd

$I01L T6°9¢€€
IP$€8-0226

TYd 867661
aIvd
$I0L 86°66T

0€v€£8-0226
T9d 86 €T

arvd

$I0L 86 €T
€6€€8-0TT6
TYd 0% €€

aryd

$I0L 0% €€
L9€€8-0T226
T9d 6¥%°CT
arvd

SIOL 6%°CT
£v£€8-02T6

TYg 0S5 GET
arvd

$10L 0S°G€Z
¥09%20%

T¥d 98°84C

#DOANT

$z/S0/2 :@3ea




69°1G¢ 8068¢
Sy L98 ¥T06C
~66° %S¢ 89682
66°V¥S¢C 8968C
927891 8968¢C
TELLEGT 9T68C
66°6C £LLBT
6%°6 €£LL8T
ST 0T%¥ TS06¢C
8C°6¥%C 9€£88C
8L 9¢€ 9€88¢C
JUNOWY #0d4d

q :abeg

w3 SUTT

SHDIOANI ODNIANY.ISLNO

SWH NITNdVD

uoTadTIaosad

ANYJOId

L9TT 08T¥%9 OW ALID SVSNVI
L9TT08 X0d Od

ANYAO¥d HTOVNNIJG

€IT099 X0d "0°4d
10d3d ¥D2IJ40

€TITO 992SL XI SYTIVA
£TT099 X0d "O°d

L10dEd HDOIALAO

€IT099 X0d "0°4d
L0dHEd HOIA40

Z008 €0088 WN SHONMD SVTI
zZ000E X0d ‘¥dS DSK
DONILNNODDY IDAL0dd dHI0OSNOdS
ALISYIAINN HIVIS ODIXHW MEN

STy88 WN NOLAVID

IS NIVW ZTT

SI¥VYd OLNVY LHEHYLS NIVK
SI¥¥d OINVY VaUYN

ST¥88 WN NOLAYTIOD

LS NIVKW TIT

SI¥VYd OLNY IIHIALS NIVK
SI¥dvYd OLOY YdVN

Z206L XI IJVYHIVA
HLL LSYH STS

A1ddNs OLNY NOISSTIW

S1¥88 WN NOLAYID
¥6 X0d "0°d

SI¥Yd [ DIE SHINTO OW

ST%88 WN NOLAYID
¥6 X004 "0O°d

SI¥Yd [ DIF SHINID OW
ST¥88 WN NOLAWID

¥6 X0g "0O°d

sweN

90:80:91

TYd 69 TIS€

arvd

$I0L 69°1S€E
9v£TTZIN

T¥d  SP°L98
arvd
$I0L S¥%°L98
LLZE9

Ve -66°¥ST
arvd

$10L -66°¥ST
TOOLTI9TIE6YE

Y 66 FSC
arvda

$I0L 66°%SC
1009900886€€

TYd 927597
arvd

$10L 9T S9T
TOOPTTET6LPE

I¥d CE LLEGT
arvd

SIOL <CTE'LLEGT
$2022CT

TVd 66°6C
arvd

SIOL 66762
80LTOT

e 6%°6
aIvd

SI0L 6V 6
[ ATA°EY

TYdg ST OTH¥
arvd

$I0L ST OTv¥
LST989-L9€6

TYd 8T 6%C
arvd

$IOL 8T 6%T
679€8-0226

TYd  8L°9¢€
arvd

$1OL 8L 9€
0T9€8-0226

Tvd 66 TLI
arvd
$I0L 66 TLT

#DANT

¥Zz/s0/C  :93ed




00°00ST €L88C
€67 LY 7088¢C
yZ L86 8068C
T8 €0¢€ 8068C
00°99¢ 8068¢C
00°08¢ 8068C
z5°98¢ 8068C
8¢ 06T 80682
00" TLT 8068¢C
8¢ 8¢CC 8068C
00°58¢C 8068C
00 0%TT 8068C
L6 06L 8068C
JUNOWY #0d4

9 :abeg

TOTZEOTOY

SZ0TES0TY
GZ0TEOTOV

SZ0ZTYLOY

ws3T SuT]

SHEDIAYES DNINVITIO

NIV qadd - HNYd0dd
SAATIEHS - ANVJCEd

ad NITINdYD - INYdOodd

uotadtaosaa

SHDOIOANI ONIAONVISLAO

"1S NOS¥HAddaL STV

SHDIAJGES ONINVATD NdL vEd

OTIILNEL OTIYDI™

88TT Z¥6€L A0 NOWAND
88TT XO0d "CO°d

08T¥9 OW ALID SVUYSNYA
L9TTO08 X0d Od

ANYdOdd HTOVYNNIA

08T%9 OW ALID SVYSNVI
L9TT08 X0€ Od

HANYJOdd HTOVYNNIJ

08T%9 OW ALID SUYSNYI
L9TTO08 XO0d Od

ANYd0dd HIOVNNIA

08T%9 OW ALID SVYSNYI
L9TT08 XO€ Od

ANYJOUd HTOVYNNIA

08T%9 OW ALID SVYSNVA
L9TTO08 XO0d Od

ANYJOId HTOVYNNIG

08T%9 OW ALID SVYSNVX
L9TTO08 XOod Od

ANVJOdd HTIOVYNNIA

08T¥9 OW ALID SVSNVI
L9TT08 X008 0Od

ANYJIOEd HTOUNNIA

08T%9 OW ALID SVYSNVI
L9TT08 X004 Od

INYd0dd HTOVNNIA

08T%9 OW ALID SVYSNVI
LI9TTO8 XO0d Od

INYdOdd HTOVYNNIJ

08T%9 OW ALID SVYSNVI
L9TTO08 XO€ Od

ANYJ0dd dTOVYNNIA

SweN

90:80:9T

aIrvd
$I0L 00°00ST
$20Z-T

Ve €6 LY
arvda

$I0L €6° LY
$202102

TYd S0°T62CT
arvd
SI0L SO T16CT
$20CT

TYd 007992

arvd

$10L 007992
£€00TTZIN

TYd 00°08€

arvd

$I0L 00°08€
9860TCIN

Tv¥d 297982

arvd

$I0L TS°98C
S860TCTIN

TYd  8€£°06T

arvda

$I0L 8€£°06T
$S0TTZIN

TYd 00" TLT

arvd

$I0L 00 TLT
0¥ZTITZIO

Yd  8€°82¢C

aivd

$10OL 8¢€°82¢
ZTETITIN

TYd 00°68¢

arvd

$10L 00°58¢
€5ZTITIZIN

T9d 00°0¥TT

arvd

$I0L 00°0¥%1T
T6TTIZIN

TYd L6 06L

aIva

SI10L L6°06L
LYETTCTO

#DANT

$Z/S0/2 :®3ed



88 Xod  QIvd
$I0L €V €TL
€% €CTL £9L8TC 9L025220% SEITAANS JAIVIH *0D ONIQWRIL ALIADYMS z9v9T
Z¥6E€L MO NOWAND TYg S9° 866
6€ X0d O0d  AIvd
$10L S9°866
597866 05062 T80Z89GT¥H YAQATIHS DFD 0-H09TSLTHANI SIDNAo¥d HADIAIO DdS 0-P09T8LT
06°€1C $SL8T Sz0ZSHS80F HSNOH HMIA NYAES 8000TTTTZHLOOY
87 €LT $SL8T 5702S¥80F% TIAM HDS Q4 NVYQIS LOOOTTTTIZHIDOY
657 €9 $SL8T S7Z0Z6%60% IWLS H¥IA NIAAVH SO00TTITZHIOOY
56°28 $SL8T SZ0ZEOTOw ans JAT¥EHS TOOSTTITTIZHIIOY
89°00T $SL8T 570Z6760% Q4 NHAAVH/QYISIWY STOOTTTTZHLIDOVY
TIv 61T $SL8T SZ0ZES0TH NIVW @Iy €TOOTTTTZ#IDDY
9T 0L $SL8T SZ0ZESOTY SINEEIID qdTd ZTOOTTITZH#IDDOY
SL°SHT $SL8T SZ0Z6V60% o¥ Qi QYISINY TTCOTTTTZHIODY
8T $0€ $GL8T 570ZS¥80%  SYWOHL dd NYQHZS OTOOTTTTZHIOOY
£0°8S $5L8C 5zZ0ZSY80Y ANWIHZAOd G NYAES 6000TTITZHIOOY
TZ°89 ¥SL8T SZ0ZESOTH YOENHS adFd 9000TTTITZHIOOY
L8 ETT $SL8T SZTOZLSTTY ad ITITANZED F000TTTTZH#IODOVY
L8 LTT ¥SL8T SZ0ZESOTY NOINEY ddEd €000TTTIZHIODY STH88 WN NOLAYID TYd ST L88T
85709 $5L82C SZOZIVLOY SWE NITAAYD ZOOOTTTTZ#IDDY 69¢ Xod  aIvd
67 LTT $SL8T SZOZIHLOY ad NITNdYD TOOTTTTZHIDOY $I0L ST L88T
0Z°L9 ¥SL8T 5Z0Z6¥60Y  TIEM 04 AYLSIWY PTOOTTTTZHIOOY DIYIDHETHE NIZISHEMHINOS 09L8T
T00L8 WN SENOUODTY 7Y 00°000%
oaE¥ATY ETIYD €T dI¥d
$I0L 00°000%
00°000% 0L68Z 0T0Z80T0F ONINIVEIL INZWAOTHAHA MOIDNWISNI  SINVIIASNOD ONINIVEIL LSEMHINOS — TTTEZ0Z
ST¥88 WN NOLAYID T¥d 00 €98
IS NTIODNIT T  dIvd
$I0L 007 €98
00°€98 LEO6T ZI0ZESOTH SHATIL ¥HALS SHTINDIYEH TTE6IHANI HOIANES ANY TIIL W-XIS  TT69
ST¥88 WN NOLAYID Tvd 167 VL
1S NTIODNIT T  dIvd
$I0L 16" %L
16 %L S6L8T TT0Z80TO0Y JIVAHS HNIL/SHONVHD TIO 8T89#ANI IDIAMAS ANV HIIL W-XIS 8T89
STP88 WN NOLAYTID Iv¥d 00°0¢C
IS NTIODNIT T  dIvd
$I10L 00°0¢
00°02 S6L8T TT0Z80T0Y JIVATI HMIL/SEONYHD TIO E€LLIHANI FDINJHES ANV HITLL W-XIS €LLY
STI$88 WN NOLAYID TYd 267 SPT
IS NTIODNIT T  dIvd
$1I0L 26°SPI
6 SPT S6L8C T10Z80T0V JIVATY HIIL/SHONVHD TIO FLLOHANI ADIAYIS ANY HITLL W-XIS YLLY
ST¥88 WN NOLAYID TS 26 18T¢E
IS NIODNIT T  aIvd
$10L 26 T8TE
Z6°1I8TE LEO6T ZI0ZESOTH SHYIL TI NYWNOYI X8 O0089#ANI FDIANHES ANV ZIIL W-XIS 0089
ST¥88 WN NOILAVYID TYd 00°00ST
JUNOWY #0d well SUTT uoT3drIosaq sweN H#DOANI
L :ebed SHDIOANI ONIANYISINO 90:80:9T ¥Z/50/T :®3ed



955€0Z X009  QIvd
SIOL 007291
00°29T £€168¢ 820Z88¥%09 AHTII0 SYOSSASSY NOIIVITYLSNI ‘SEIDOTONHDEL JATAL  TLOZSH-ST
TLY0 T€088 WN ONIWAA TYd 0Z° 06T
0¥ €9 6LL8T 600Z90T0¥ SEJYI FHATILIYD arvda
0¥ €9 6LL8T 600ZLOTOY SHAVI HOAIAIAYD TLYy ¥EMYEA "0°d  $I0L 0T 06T
0% €9 6LL8T 600220T0% SEAYI FHATILIYD DIAQYI¥YL  8ETZOLT
TLH0 TE€088 WN ONIWAQ TYg 957 €88€E
£6°8TE€T 6LL8C €T0ZLOTO® SEDIAYES MFOMIAN aIvda
£€6°8TET 6LL8C €T0Z90TO0% SHDTANHES MIOMIAN TLP WIMYEA "0°d  $I0L 957 €88¢€
0L°S%TT 6LL8T £€T0220T0% SADIANMAS MIOMIAN DIAQYIMI  TOTZ6ELLBOT
TLH0 TE088 WN ONIWEA Tyd 18 TI¥6¢
se-8gel 6LL8T €T0ZLOTOY SHEDIANES YHOMLIN arvd
S 8€ET 6LL8T €T0Z90TO% SHDOIAMAS MUOMIAEN TLy ¥EMYEA "0°d  $I0L T8 I¥6¢€
TT°S92T 6LL8T €T02Z0TO¥ SHDIAMAS MUOMIAN DIAYINIL  8€TTZ98LS8OT
ST¥88 WN NOLAYID TYd  TLLIE
INNISHEHD T  dIvd
$I0L TL LTE
TL°LIE S8L8T 9L0ZS220% SIDHELOYd WO4 YAILYM 1IN NOLAVTID 40 NMOL  ¥20€T
L6°9%C S8L8C SZ0ZE0TO¥ NIWAY 20-02Z0-ZEH#IODY
80°8S S8L8T SZOZEOTO¥ aggd a0 90-S5590-TH#IDDY
$5° €8T S8L8T SZ0ZEOTO¥ XENNY TO-08Z0-ZE#IDDY
£9°089 S8L8T SZ0ZE0TO¥ ASNOHIMNOD TO0-SLZO-TEH#IDDY STP88 KN NOLAYTID TYg 6L°G8ST
€% ¥ST S8L8T SZ0ZEOTO¥ NIWAY 20-%TZ0-ZEH#IDDY INNISEHD T  QIv¥d
0T"6ST S8L8¢ S7Z0ZE6S09  HDOIASO JAATIYEHS €0-86TT-ZTTHIODY SIOL 6L°S8ST
0" €0T S8L8T 5z02S2Z07% IdEd @¥ TO0-S€00-TT#IDDY NOILAYID A0 NMOL  $20Z9¢T
ST$88 WN NOLAYID Tvd  €£%° 2S¢
IS NIVW T06  QIv¥d
$I0L €% 2TST
£€¥%°25¢ 90882 ZOTZH0TO¥ LSISSY HOEL/IWOW HIOWHS 68EO0#ANT ANS II HHL  68¢€
1" %8 9088¢C Z0TZLOTOP ISISSY HOHL/IWOW HIOWHI 88EOHANI
6L°0T 90882 9,025220% LISISSY HOEL/SNIIA IINY 88EOHANT
Y198 9088¢C 9.0ZESOTH ISISSY HOHL/IWOW HIOWHHE 88ECOH#ANI
12°92T 9088¢Z Z0TIZZO0TO¥ ISISSY HOHL/IWOW ZIOWHN 88€E0#ANI STP88 WN NOLAYID Tv¥g  TL°LSS
L0°C% 90882 9,0Z89STH ISISSY HOAL/IWOW HIOWZI 88EOH#ANI IS NIVW 106  QIvd
L0° 2% 9088¢C 9402S5L92¥% LSISSY HOEL/IWOW HLOWHI 88EOH#ANI $I0L TL'LSS
62°89T 9088¢C ZOTZ90T0% LSISSY HOEL/IWOW ZIOWZY 88EO0H#ANI XND LI EHL  88€
ST¥88 WN NOLAVID TYg 807 2TV
IS NIVW TO6  dIvVd
$10L 80 CI¥
80°ZI¥ 90882 Z0TZ80TO% LSISSY HOHL/IWOW HIOWHM L8EOHANI AND LI HHI  L8E
ST#88 WN NOLAYTID TYd  ZS°6LT
g8 X0dg  QIv¥d
$101L TS 6LT
ZS°6LT £9.8T 9L0Z5220% SHITAANS STS9THANI *OD ONIAYML AINADYMS  GTS9T
ST$88 WN NOILAYID Vg €F°€TL
Junowy #Om ws3I [UTT QO..mUnm..nHUWQQ SWeN #UPZH
8 :abeg SHDIOANI SNIANYLSINO 90:80:9T ¥Z/50/2 :®3BQ



O0TOZ%0TO0¥ THNg

CT0TSCTOoY SI¥Vd/SATITIANS S9STTTO090SIHANT

JNVE XEM

9TIZ ¥8CSL XL SYIIVA
9TTIC¥8 X0d Od

IY¥D NIJIVM

ZT0ZSCC0d SYIVITA 4IN0OT 8S9¥880MEOSHANT
S80CT800S SWE NOIIVDOTIY ¥C Ad
£80CT800S SWH NOIIVYDOTIY ¥C A&
800Z90TO¥% SNILIOJHE A0 HOILION SUOSSHSSY

9%0Ce0TO0Y FDIANAS ATHINOW S8TLETOS8THANT
Sv0CE0TO0d HADIANAS ATHINOW ¥6LETOS8THANT
820788¥09 HDIAA0 SHOSSHSSY NOILVITVISNI

0006 T6Z08 OD WEANEA
0006T6 X0"€ "O°d

TO0D INAWAINOE JENOYM

0006 T6Z08 OD ¥WIANHA
0006T6 X0d "O°d

‘0D INAWAINOT JINDUM

0006 T6C08 0D ¥YIANIA
0006Te XOd "O°d

TOD INAWIINOE YANDYM
$Z%88 WN HTTIANAID
IS HLS %€

9vZ X0€d "0°d
HTIIANTEED 40 EDVITIA

8T¥88 WN SHNIOW SEA
LZT X0g "0O°d

SHENIOW SHEd 40 HOVTIIA

ST¥88 WN NOLAYTID
98% X0€ "0O°4d

JHAYHET XINNOD NOINO

ST¥88 WN NOLAYTID
SL X009 "0°d

ALHIDOS TYITAOLSIH ALNAOD NOINN

L88TO0 YW NOLONIWTIIM
009 X049 Od

LSITAINO

L88T0 YW NOLDNIWIIM
009 X0€ O4

LSYTAINO

955¢ 0ZESL XI SYTIVd
98G€0C Xo0d

"ONI ‘SHIDOTONHDHL JATAL

8€ 97 L8LBT
S6°88C 8588¢C
SS°988 TE68C
¥ 9cL Te68C
26°66ST TE68Z
005298 S868C
00°0S20T 9868¢
T9° 289 60682
00°0SL LY06C
6£°98 T088<C
v 88 T088C
0S°TCT £1682C

JuUnowy #od

6 :obea

we3I SUTT uotadraosad

SHDTOANT ONIANVISINO

9S5¢ 0TESL XL SYTINA

sweN

90:80:9T

588976176

TYd S6°88T
arva

$10L S6°88C
§9GTTT090Sd
TYd S5 ¥88
arvd

$I0L S5 988
0L0S880MEDS
TYE IV SZL
aIvd

$I0L TI¥°ScCL
S9L¥880MEODS
TYd 26 G6ST
aivd

SI0L T6°S6ST
859¥%880MEOS
TYd  00° G295
arvd

$10L 00°5Z9S
zZ0¥202

TYd 00°0S20T
aIvd

$I0L 00°0520T
$Z022T

IYg 19 28§
arvd

$IOL T19°28S
£Y67Y

TYd 007 0SL
arvd

$I0L 00°0SL
$Z0Z1T

TYd  6€°98
arvd

$101L 6£°98
S8TLETOS8T
Tvd  Cv 88
aivd
$10L Zv 88
Y6LEET0S8C
TYd 067 ICT
aIvd
| $I0L 0§ TCT

TOSESY-ST

TYg  00°Z9T
#DANT

¥z/S0/2 :®3eq



¥8 6LET6T +xxDNIDIOANT TYLOLxx»

$£908 0D AHTHIED TYd L€ 9IS
OTT# HIDIID AAOLNOWO¥A LSST  dIVd
$10L LE€°9S¥H

LE9SY 7888¢ ZT0CSTC0Y SHITAANS €LLBISTHANI INANIINOE STAAIE ¥ €LLBIST

9L°98 LB8LBT 9L0TTY9CTY TaNg

62708 L8LBT TTO0ZZOTIOY TH0d

€€°696T LBL8T TT0Z80T0¥ ) TaENA

€Z°6T00T LBLBT ¥Y$025220% ‘ TH0g

65716 L8L8Z 9L0Z89STY Tand €629 L6TO09 TI WYHELS TOUYD T¥d 6L T6¥%CT

Sy 96 L8LS8T T10Z6L66Y TaNg €629 X0d 0Od arvd

9L TITT LBL8T TI0ZE0TO0¥ ptciatis SI0L 6L TI6%CT
AUnowy #0d we3I *{UTT uotidraossg SweN #DANT

0T :obeg SHDIOANT ONIANVYISLINO 90:80:9T ¥%Z/S0/T :°3ed



* Uiion Comniy

Clayton Kiesling PO Box 430 Brandy Thompson
Chair Clayton, NM 88415 County Manager
W. Carr Vincent (575)374-8896

Member (575)374-2763 Fax Stephen C. Ross
Lloy(l Miller WWW.Unionnm.us County Attorney
Member

Inventory Items for Disposition

e 1960’s used/incomplete 4BT Cummins Box Crate Diesel engine model 3304

DONE at Clayton, County of Union, this 14th day of November, 2023

UNION BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

Clayton Kiesling, Chairman

W. Carr Vincent, Member

ATTEST: Lloyd Miller, Member

Brenda Green, County Clerk



ARPA Funding - Encumbered by 12/31/2024 Expended by 12/31/26

ARPA 1st Tranche 5/21/21
ARPA 2nd Tranche 6/13/2022

Purchase Video Conferencing 2/8/2022
Eforce Software 2/15/2023

Clayton Senior Center Allocation 1/23 to 6/23

DM Senior Center Allocation 1/23 to 6/23
Strategic Planning 5/16/23

ACOM Check Interface 11/16/23

Melloy Dodge Ram 1500 11/16/23
Melloy Chevrolet Chevy Blazer 1/3/24
Mel's Heater Sales 2/8/24

Tyler Software

Integrity Overhead Doors 2/8/24

Mission Auto 2/8/24

Tyler Software

Steed Used Oil Heater & Service

Triadic Assessor Conversion Fee

Time Clock Plus

Communication Assessment- Baca Valley

2/5/24 Balance

Amount
Received

S 394,206.50

S 394,206.50
S 788,413.00

Expenditures to

date

2,447.08
80,857.34
3,000.00
6,000.00
27,197.86
9,247.00
43,943.00
37,130.00
14,692.21
283.50
42,063.00
4,410.15

271,271.14

Encumbrances

34,838.00
2,800.00
15,000.00
9,461.00
2,373.25
64,472.25

Balance

$  452,669.61



